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Appendix 4E

Preliminary Final Report

Period ended 30 June 2012

GWA GROUP LIMITED

ABMN Half Preliminary Year ended (‘current period’)
Yearly Finhal
v
15 065 964 380 30 June 2012
~ Results for announcement to the market $4'000
Continuing Operations
Revenues from ordinary activities Down 61% to 602128
Trading earnings before inferest and tax™ Down 246% to 75,364
Trading profit after tax™ Drown 22.8% fo 45 662
* excludes net restructuring expenses
Significant Items
Met restructuring income after tax 621
Loss from discontinued operations after tax (6,518)
Reported Profit After Significant Ttems
MNet profit for the period attributable to members Bown 37.4% 1o 39,655

Final Dividend

Ameunt Per Security

Franked Amount
Per Security

COrdinary dividend 8.5¢ 8.6¢
Previous corresponding period:
COrdinary dividend BE¢ 8.5¢
Record date for determining dividend entitiements 14 september 2012
Last date for receipt of election notices for the Dividend 14 September 2012
Reinvestment Plan
Date dividend payable 4 October 2012
Current Previous
Period Corresponding
Period
Met tangible asset backing per ordinary security 015 0.14

Brief explanation of the figures reported above:

Refer to the attached Media Release and Managing Director's Review of Operations,

The attached Annual Financial Report has been audited.
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Lower Annual Result in Line with Guidance Reflecting

Difficult Trading Conditions EEEDE,?; Eﬂﬂ,,m,

° Headline revenue down 6% with underlying revenue down by 12%,

after allowing for full year of the Gliderol acquisition
° Trading Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT) from continuing

operations of $75 million

° Strong cash flow reduced net debt to $174 million

s Substantial restructuring funded by sale of non-core properties

° Fully franked final dividend of 8.5 cents per share with total fully
franked dividend maintained at 18 cents for the year

o Dividend policy reviewed to reflect uncertain outlook

GWA Group Limited, Australia’s leading supplier of fixtures and fittings to
households and commercial premises, today announced a 25% decrease in Trading
Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT) for continuing operations from

$99.9 million to $75.4 million for the year to 30 June 2012.

Net profit after tax from continuing operations fell 22% fo $46.2 million and
earnings per share reduced to 15 cents per share. The directors have maintained
the final fully franked dividend at 8.5 cents per share to be paid in October 2012,
with the total fully franked dividend for the full year maintained at 18 cents per
share. The 120% payout ratio reflects strong operating cash flow for the year and
availability of franking credits.

Managing Director Peter Crowley said, "Our businesses have performed well ina
difficult market with dwelling construction and consumer confidence declining fo the
low levels experienced during the global financial crisis. The decline in Federal
Government stimulus spending and cessation of rebates on environmental water
heaters also had a material impact on sales, Despite the decline in earnings, cash
flow has been managed well and we have reduced net debt to maintain a strong
balance sheet to capitalise on growth opportunities.”

Bathrooms & Kitchens division sales were reduced by 10%, with EBLT down 23%
from $78.9 million to $61 million. Substantial improvements were made in
operational efficiency and the successful phase down of Wetherill Park operations
improved cash flow. Costs were well managed but margins on lower revenue
impacted the EBIT result,
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Heating & Cooling division sales were down 15%, with EBLT declining by 23% to
$13.3 million, Sales of environmental water heaters declined significantly with the
cessation of Federal Government rebates in February 2012, Commissioning of the
Moss Vale water heater factory upgrade also added to costs in the second half of
the year, This commissioning was largely complete by the end of June 2012 which
will improve the cost base and protect margins.

Door & Access Systems division sales increased 22%, due to the inclusion of Gliderol
for the full year. Underlying sales were down by 10%, with EBIT reduced by 18%
from $17.2 million to $14.1 million. Despite the full year contribution from Glideral,
the division is highly leveraged to new residential construction, which declined by
13% during the year. Closure of the Gainsborough factories at Blackburn and
Kyneton were completed and lower cost supply chains established during the year.
This restructuring will positively impact results in the 2012/13 year and future
periods,

Commenting on the Company's future priorities, Mr Crowley said "During the year we
have successfully completed the sale of non-core assets, closed or phased down
uncompetitive operations and established low cost efficient supply chains. Qur
priorities are in the core building fixtures and fittings segment, leveraging growth
opportunities and focussed acquisitions in product and market adjocencies. The
business is in a good position to take advantage of any future market upturn and
acquisition opportunities.”

Given the uncertain outlook, the directors have reviewed the dividend policy.
Throughout the past three years the policy has been te maintain a floor of 18 cents
per share on dividends, but in view of the sustained market downturn and uncertain
outlook, the directors have decided to eliminate the floor and increase the payout
ratio. The new dividend policy to be applied for the 2012/13 year is for dividends to
represent 80% to 95% of net profit after tax. The payout is expected to be at the
higher end of this range for 2012/13 and be fully franked,

The directors have alse reopened the Dividend Reinvestment Plan for the October
2012 final dividend at a 2.5% discount to ensure funds are available for future
acquisition opportunities.

“The outlook for 2012/13 is difficult to assess but improved building approvals in

the last quarter of 2011/12 should flow through to higher sales in late 2012, The
successful restructuring from last year has positioned the businesses, with lower

cost structures, to take maximum advantage of market opportunities. We are not
waiting for the market to return to growth and are seeking opportunities to grow

from new product launches, new channels and sensible acquisitions,” concluded Mr

Crowley.

For further information call:

Peter Crowley Tim Allerton
GWA Group Limited City PR
07 3109 6000 02 9267 4511

0412 715 707



Chairman's Review

In 2011 I reported that the decline in dwelling approvals in the second half of the
year and constrained household discretionary spending would create a challenging
economic environment in 2011/12. Whilst we understood this adverse trend, the
actual decline in market activity and difficult trading conditions experienced by the
Australian building industry in 2011/12 was unexpected and worse than the market
forecasts.

New home construction is the weakest sector in the Australian economy. The
national accounts released for the March 2012 quarter show that new dwelling
investment has fallen for four consecutive quarters, detracting from aggregate GDP
growth. This requires a policy coordination at all levels of Government to improve
af fordability and regulatory impacts which delay new housing development.

GWA is supporting the Housing Industry Asseciation (HLA) in their efforts fo
advise Governments on policy responses to the current downturn. We welcome the
recent announcement by the Federal Government appointing a panel to look at the
impact of costs and competitiveness on the industry cost structure. Housing
affordability is severely impacted by regulation and Government charges and this is
a key issue in demand for housing.

Strategy

With the successful divestment of our Caroma North American and Sebel
Commercial Furniture businesses during 2011/12, our strategy is now focused on the
Australian Building Fixtures and Fittings sector with three core business segments
of scale comprising Bathrooms & Kitchens, Heating & Cooling and Door & Access
Systems. We are committed to providing compelling customer value propositions in
the sector through product innovation, efficient supply chains, strong brand
management, and installation and service capabilities.

Overview of Results

The Group achieved a net profit after tax from continuing businesses of

$46.2 million in the 2011/12 year on sales revenue of $602.1 million. This
represents a decline of 22% and 6% respectively, Considerable restructuring
activities have been successfully completed during the year to improve
competitiveness. This has involved the closure or phasing down of uncompetitive
Australian manufacturing and establishing efficient offshore supply chains. This
restructuring was funded by the sale of non-core properties resulting in a small net
increase to profit after tax of $0.6 million, The Board is pleased that such large
scale restructuring was achieved with no impact on shareholder funds.

New dwelling approvals in the first half of 2012 do not indicate an early
improvement in business conditions in 2012/13 but the underlying demand for
housing still exists and GWA is in a good position to take advantage of an upturn



when it occurs. The Managing Director will expand on the achievements for
2011/12, the outlook for the year ahead, together with our strategic priorities in
his Review of Operations.

Dividends and Capital Management

GWA's dividend policy has been that "absent an unexpected decline in profitability,
ordinary dividends will be maintained at 18.0 cents per share until it equals 70% fo
80% of earnings at which time the dividend will increase in line with perfermance.”

The Group's strong operating cash flow enabled the directors to declare a final fully
franked dividend of 8.5 cents per share to be paid in October which maintained the
fully franked dividend for the year at 18.0 cents per share. GWA has maintained a
high dividend payout at 120% of trading profit after tax in 2011/12 whilst reducing
debt, but this cannot be sustained in the future without an improvement in earnings.
The sustained nature of adverse trading conditions has been unexpected and the
timing for improved building activity is uncertain meaning a review of our dividend
policy is required.

The Board is focussed on maximising returns to shareholders whilst maintaining a
capacity to grow the business and has therefore approved a new dividend policy
which increases the return to shareholders through the business cycle but limits
dividend payouts in the cyclical downturns. The new dividend policy is as follows:

“The dividend payout through the business cycle will be in the range of 80% fo 95%
of net profit affer tax. We expect the payout to be at the higher end of 1his range
for 2012/13 and be fully franked.”

Net debt at the end of June 2012 was $174 million, down by $24 million from June
2011 due to divestments and reduced working capital. Debt is well covered by total
bank facilities of $300 million and we appreciate the ongoing support of our banks
including Commonwealth Bank, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group, National
Australia Bank, Westpac Banking Corporation and HSBC Bank Australia.

The Board

The Board is working effectively with no changes after the appointments of

Mr John Mulcahy and Mr Peter Birtles last financial year. The new directors have
made valuable contributions to the Board during the year and we continue to benefit
from their skills and expertise. We are aware of the current focus on diversity and
will continue to look for opportunities to improve diversity and maintain relevant
experience when making future Board appointments. The Board supports the
recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council on diversity which are
effective from 1 January 2011 and has provided the required diversity disclosures
in its Corporate Governance Statement,



Executive Remuneration

GWA's remuneration policies continue to be assessed with the independent advice of
Guerdon Associates, We aim to provide remuneration that is fair and sufficient to
attract and retain management and directors with the experience, knowledge, skills
and judgment required for the business. The key principle is that remuneration
varies between the median and third quartiles (or higher if warranted by superior
performance) relative to companies of comparable size and scope o GWA.

The only change in the remuneration policy for 2012/13 is the cessation of the
legacy GWA Employee Share Plan. Changing employee attitudes fo share ownership
has led to lower participation levels in recent years and it is no longer effective as a
long term incentive (LTL). A more effective approach will be to expand the use of
the LTI Plan approved by shareholders in 2008 to select lower level management
that formerly participated in the legacy GWA Employee Share Plan. These changes
are proposed to commence from the 2012/13 LTI grant and will be reported in next
year's Remuneration Report,

Our Remuneration Report has been improved through ongoing feedback and
engagement with stakeholders. The Board endeavours to balance the need to
address market trends whilst positioning GWA to retain and attract a high quality
management team led by our experienced Managing Director of the past 9 years,
Mr Peter Crowley. As outlined last year, Mr Crowley agreed to a freeze on his fixed
remuneration for 3 years from 2011 to 2014 and will not receive any increase in
fixed remuneration in 2012. For other GWA executives, the review by Guerdon
Associates during the year concluded that fixed remuneration for most GWA
executives is closer to market levels.

Our executive and management incentive schemes cover approximately 16% of total
employees with total short term incentive payments for the year representing less
than 4% of trading profit. This is less than last year and in line with the lower
trading result. The Board believes this is a reasonable balance of reward for
management and shareholders and is necessary to ensure we are competitive to
retain our high quality executive and management team.

Sustainability and Carbon Emissions

The Board is committed to reducing energy, carbon emissions, water and
waste across the GWA Group operations. GWA reports its group carbon
emissions annually under the Federal Government's National Greenhouse and
Emissions Reporting (NGER) Scheme and the reports can be accessed on
EWA's website.

An important project undertaken during the year was the upgrade of the Dux
water heater factory at Moss Vale which aims To minimise the use of energy,
waste and raw materials used in the factory, This project included capital
expenditure of $3.5 million for new tank feaming equipment which uses



pentane as a blowing agent. Pentane is non-ozene depleting and has virtually
no greenhouse gas emissions,

GWA People

Qur business is only as good as our people and we aim to provide a safe and
rewarding environment in the workplace. We are very pleased with continuing
progress in safety performance resulting in a 14% reduction in the total injury
frequency rate in 2011/12. This is the seventh consecutive year of improvement and
reflects the ongoing commitment fo creating an injury free work environment,

In closing, I would like to thank management and staff for their efforts in the
2011/12 year and their commitment to GWA. The business environment will
continue to be difficult but we have the people, business processes and strategies
to build stronger businesses for the future.



Managing Director's Review of Operations

The results for 2011/12 are presented in the Financial Statements for GWA's continuing
operations and the comparative impact of discontinued operations during the year.

Revenue reduced by 6% but this was favourably impacted by the full year's contribution
from Gliderol and like for like underlying sales were down by 12%. This decline is in line
with market demand where dwelling commencements for the year reduced by 13%
compared to 2010/11. New dwelling commencements for the financial year are
approaching levels experienced in the global financial crisis and reflect a 10 year
declining trend in building activity. In our view the key issue impacting demand is housing
affordability driven by Government charges and regulatory costs. These issues are
limiting building activity to levels which do not support underlying demand for housing,
GWA's focus is to ensure our businesses are in a good position to benefit from the
inevitable upturn when it occurs.

The low building activity is particularly apparent in New South Wales and Queensland and
we are starting o see policy initiatives such as stamp duty relief on new dwellings for
first home buyers which will assist with affordability. Streamlining regulatory processes
to reduce developer costs is still to be addressed and as noted in the Chairman's Review
we welcome the formation of a panel by the Federal Government to provide
recommendations on costs and competitiveness for the housing industry.

The following chart demonstrates the trend in reduced dwelling construction by showing
the twelve month moving annual numbers for dwelling activity since 2003,

New Dwelling Activity
12 Month Moving Average

190,000 -
180,000
170,000
160,000
150,000

140,000

Moving Annuzal Numbers

130,000

120 ﬂnn T T T T T T T T T T T T T 17T ¥ T I 1 i 1 L] i L} ] T T L] T T T T T

{\p, Q%Qﬁh ﬁ"'{‘:ﬁhé‘“{\p‘“&.ﬁ"ﬁé “QQ’ & @éﬂ%”-‘ !&é_h“{\h" "“{\'\3‘
‘:F’ QY W QY W Q¥ Y P 's" W oF & f o

Sotrco: B3 Sheapnel |+ Approvals - » Commencements —a— Camp!&llans|




Financial Results for 2011/12

$ Million 2011/12 2010/11 % Change
Sales Revenue 602.1 641.6 -b%
Trading EBIT 754* 99.9 -25%
EBIT Margin 12.5% 15.6%
Trading Profit after Tax
from Continuing Operations 45.6* 59.0 -23%
Profit after Tax from
Continuing Operations after
 Restructuring Costs 46.2 53.0 -22% |
 Discontinued Operations -6.5 43 ]
'Net Profit after Tax 39.7 634 -37%
Trading Earnings per Share
~Continuing Operations 15.1 19.6 -23%

* excludes nef restructuring expenses

The twelve months sales from Gliderol which was acquired in January 2011 added 5% to
overall revenue in 2011/12, partially of fsetting the decline in underlying demand for our
products. This decline has been driven by three key factors:
o Cessation of Federal Government stimulus spending and environmental water
heater rebates reduced overall sales by 6%
« Decline in new dwelling activity reduced sales by 4%
¢ Lower building renovation activity reduced sales by 2%

The lower underlying demand was partially offset by market and product development
activities, Do-it-Yourself market channels grew during the year compared to the decline
in merchant channels and we have grown our installed market offers for selected
products,

The decline in trading profit is almost entirely attributed fo the decline in revenue, Cost
increases and pricing pressure has been largely of fset by cost improvement initiatives.
This is despite the higher costs incurred during commissioning of the Moss Vale water
heater factory upgrade and costs incurred in transitioning from local manufacturing to
lower cost of fshore suppliers.

Cash generated from continuing operations of $111 million was similar to last year despite
the 25% reduction in trading EBIT. We are pleased with the strong operating cash flow
reflecting the benefits of investment in information systems and ongoing improvements
in supply chain management to reduce working capital. Proceeds from the sale of Sebel
and Caroma North America were used to repay debt which reduced from $198 million to
$174 million. Restructuring activities which resulted in an 8% reduction in employee
numbers were funded by the sale of non-core properties. This strong cash position has
underpinned our ability to maintain the dividend payout at 18 cents despite the lower
trading result.



Strategy and Growth

The sale of Sebel Commercial Furniture, non-core properties and Caroma North America |
during the year completes a 3 year strategy to divest non-core assets and focus on
creating a strong competitive position in the Australian Building Fixtures and Fittings
sector. Divestments over this period have yielded approximately $80 million in funds and
allowed us to invest some $100 million in acquisitions of core businesses. At the same
time we have maintained the high dividend payout and reduced debt. Given the economic
volatility over this period we are satisfied with the effectiveness of this transition and
our strong balance sheet which provides scope for further growth,

We now have three core business segments of scale which are managed under separate
mahagement structures. The core business segments reported separately in the Financial
Statements are as follows:

Bathrooms & Kitchens - sale of vitreous china toilet suites, hand basins, plastic cisterns,
tapware, baths, spas, kitchen sinks, laundry tubs and bathroom accessories.

Door & Access Systems - sale of garage doors, door handles and door access systems, |
Heating & Cooling - sale of water heating and climate control systems.

In the Australian Building Fixtures and Fittings sector where we believe we can compete,
the total sales activity approximates $5 billion per annum. GWA has a 13% share of the
defined market, varying from as high as 50% in some segments to less than 5% in other
segments. These are competitive markets but we will look to increase our market share
through organic and inorganic growth initiatives. Organic growth involves leveraging
what we have by developing new market channels, extending existing relationships with
builders and merchants, product innovation or new distributorships. Inorganic growth
will be through acquisition of product or market adjacencies. This may involve the
acquisition of businesses to facilitate the supply of new products or for expanding our
ingtallation and service capabilities,

The nature of GWA's products mean that there is an extensive installation and service
of fering in a number of our businesses, We see growth opportunities by extending these
capabilities to enable a larger range of products to be offered with an installation and
service aption. An example of this is the recent announcement of our intention fo
acquire APT Locksmiths which is a commercial locksmithing business. If this acquisition
proceeds, it will provide GWA with options for installed offers for both mechanical and
electronic access systems and give us access o the commercial sector where we are
looking to increase sales.

Our core strategies for success in the businesses we operate are unchanged and involve
the key value propositions to our markets, including:

. Investment in innovative and sustainable products;

" Leveraging our investment in brands, sales and marketing fo ensure our products
are specified and widely available;

" Low cost supply chain management to ensure a cost competitive supply position;



" Continuing improvements in operational and business efficiency with the aid of
modern information systems;

- Deliver superior customer service levels; and

" Improve our installation and service capabilities,

Segment Performance

Segment results are summarised below:

Sales Revenue | Bathrooms & | Heating & Door & Other Total

$Million Kitchens Cooling Access
Systems
2011/12 297.8 165.8 138.6 602.2
2010/11 332.4 195.1 140 | 6415
% Change -10% -15% 22%
Trading EBLIT | Bathrooms & | Heating & Door & Other Total
$Million Kitchens Cooling Access
Systems
2011/12 61.0 13.3 14.1 -13.0 75.4
2010/11 78.9 7.2 7.2 134 | 999
% Change -23% -23% -18%

Sales from Bathrooms & Kitchens were adversely impacted by reduced Government
stimulus spending and lower building activity, The business made substantial progress
during the year with improving operational efficiency and market service. At the same
time production from the Wetherill Park vitreous china plant was phased down to allow
for a greater proportion of product to be sourced of fshore,

Heating & Cooling sales were impacted by the cessation of Federal Government rebates
on environmental water heaters in February 2012 which caused a substantial reduction in
demand for these products. Commissioning of the Moss Vale water heater factory
upgrade was largely complete by the end of June 2012 which has established a lower cost
base for 2012/13,

Door & Access Systems sales increased due to the inclusion of Gliderol for the full year.
This business is exposed to the new build market which reduced by 10% compared to
2010/11. The lower trading profit reflects the impact of the reduced underlying demand.



Financial Condition and Capital Management

Net debt at June 2012 reduced by $24 million from $198 million to $174 million as a
result of the sale of non-core businesses and assets. The gearing ratio (net debt/net
debt plus equity) of 29% is within our target range and the leverage ratio

(net debt/EBITDA) is a very acceptable 1,9 times. Inferest cover (EBITDA/Net
Interest) of 6.7 times further highlights the Company's strong financial metrics.

As we review growth options, one of our key financial criteria is to maintain our
investment grade metrics, The prolonged market downturn is increasing the likelihood of
businesses being available for acquisition and a strong balance sheet means we are ina
good position to respond to these opportunities. Inorder to ensure we mainfain this
position the Dividend Reinvestment Plan has been reactivated for the October 2012 final
dividend at a 2.5% discount. Defails will be communicated to shareholders in fime to
participate in the plan.

We have sufficient undrawn facilities and in-principle support from our banks to increase
facilities to fund growth opportunities if required, but additional capital from the

Dividend Reinvestment Plan will assist with financial flexibility.

A summary of our debt position and existing facilities is provided below.

Bank Available Drawn Maturity Profile

SMillion Facilities Facilities

CBA 100

ANZ 50

NAB B0

Westpac 50

HSBC b0

Gross debt 300 2000 July 2014 - $200 million
| 5.0 July 2016 - $100 million

Cash and

deposits : (30.5) I

Net debt l 1745 B

Health and Safety

Management is committed to continuous improvement in the Company's health and safety
performance through better safety systems and processes, extensive communicafion
with our workforce and increased diligence in identifying and removing safety risks
across our workplace.

Continuous improvement ih safety performance over the past 5 years has been
consolidated with a further 14% decline in the total injury frequency rafe in 2011/12.
With our total injury frequency rate reducing to 8.6 we now have a consistent sense of
purpose in creating a safe work environment for our people. Despite these impressive

results, we still had 12 employees sustain a lost fitme injury during the year which we will
5



strive to reduce. Good safety is good management which reflects both the efforts of
management and the diligence of our workforce. We remain committed to continuous
safety improvements with the objective of creating an injury free work environment.

The chart below highlights the continued improvement in the fotal injury frequency rate
in the 2011/12 year.

GWA Group Total Injury Frequency Rate
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Sustainability and Carbon Reduction

GWA has an active program to improve our impact on the environment through the
reduction of energy, carbon emissions, water and waste, Qur environmentally sustainable
products are also a major source of competitive advantage for the Company.

GWA reports greenhouse gas emissions under the National Greenhouse and Energy
Reporting Scheme (NGER), We are supplementing this with a standalone Sustainability
Report which will be placed on the GWA website fo allow for fransparency in our
improvement initiatives.

Tn 2011/12 the estimate of direct carbon emissions for GWA is 11,000 tonnes plus
27,000 tonnes of indirect carbon emissions through the purchase of energy. This
compares with 48,000 tonnes of total reported emissions in 2010/11. The 20% reduction
reflects the impact of plant closures and energy efficiency initiafives.

Peaple

GWA's long term success has been due to the efforts of a committed and talented
workforce. We are continuing to bring new thinking and skills into the business while alse
developing our people to provide succession opportuhities. The Company recognises the
benefits that can be achieved from a diverse workforce and has implemented policies
aitned at improving workplace diversity.



Tn support of these objectives, a significant investment has been made through the GWA
Leadership Program with the aim of underpinning a high performance culture. This
involves the development of personnel in core capabilities supported by rigorous goal
setting and performance management procedures.

GWA has engaged the Australian Institute of Management to provide an in-house -
Certificate of Management program constituting 4 modules of advanced learning to
better prepare our managers to be effective in their roles. 34 managers and senior
staff attended the programme during 2011/12,

Outlook

After a prolonged period of contraction in building approvals in 2011/12 there was some
increase in the last quarter. If this is sustained we expect that the improvement will
flow through to higher sales late in 2012, Lower inferest rates and State Government
initiatives such as the New South Wales stamp duty relief should support higher building
activity in the second half of the 2012/13 year and build confidence for the renovation
market.

Restructuring activities completed in 2011/12 and the commissioning of the Moss Vale
water heater factory upgrade will improve the cost base and protect margins,

We will be in a better position to update the market at the Annual General Meeting in
October following first quarter trading and updated statistics on dwelling activity,



Directors’ Report as at 30 June 2012

Your directors present their report on the consolidated entity of GWA Group Limited ("the Company”)
and the entities it controlled during the financial year ended 30 June 2012,

Directors

The following persons were directors of the Company during the financial year and up fo the date of
this report. Directors were in office this entire period unless otherwise stated.

G J McGrath, Chairman and NMon-Executive Director

D D McDonough, Deputy Chairman and Non-Executive Director
P € Crowley, Managing Director

R M Anderson, Mon-Executive Director

W T Bartlett, Non-Executive Director

J F Mulcahy, Non-Executive Director

P A Birtles, Non-Executive Director

R J Thornton, Executive Director

Details of the directors' qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are located in the
Annual Report.

Details of the directorships of other listed companies held by each director in the three years prior
to the end of the 2011/12 financial year, and the period for which each directorship has been held, are
listed in the Annual Report.

Company Secretary
Mr R T Thornton was appointed Company Secretary of GWA Group Limited in 2003, Mr Thornton

continued in his role as Company Secretary following his appointment as Executive Director in May
2009. Details of Mr Thornton's qualifications and experience are located in the Annual Report.

Directors’ Interests

The relevant interest of each director in the share capital of the Company as notified by the directors
to the Australian Securities Exchange in accordance with Section 2056(1) of the Carporations Act
2001 as at the date of this report is:

Director Ordinary Shares |
G J McGrath 150,000

B D McDonough 100,495

P C Crowley 750,000

R M Anderson 8,418 442

W T Bartlett 30,914

J F Mulcahy 45,000
P A Birtles 15,000
'R J Thornten 128,694

Total 9,638,545

The executive directors, Mr P € Crowley and Mr R J Thornton, are holders of Performance Rights
under the GWA Group Limited Long Tert Incentive Plan. For details of the Performance Rights held,
please refer to the Remuneration Report.

Page | 1



Note 33 to the Financial Statements sets out the number of shares held directly, indirectly or
beneficially by directors or their related entities at balance date as prescribed in Accounting
Standard AASB 124, this being 19,624,906 shares (last year 19,587,525 shares).

Corporate Structure

GWA Group Limited is a Company limited by shares that is incorporated and domiciled in Australia,
GWA Group Limited has prepared a Consolidated Financial Report incorporating the entities that it
controlled during the financial year ended 30 June 2012, which are outlined in Note 30 of the Financial
Statements,

Principal Activities

The principal activities during the year within the consolidated entity were the research, design,
manufacture, import and marketing of building fixtures and fittings to households and commercial
premises and the distribution of these various products through a range of distribution channels in
Australia and overseas.

The Company completed the divestments of the remaining non-core operations through the sale of
Sebel Furniture Limited and related entities in September 2011 and the sale of the Caroma North
American business in December 2011. There have been no other significant changes in the nature of
the activities of the consolidated entity during the year.

Employees

The consolidated entity employed 1788 employees as at 30 June 2012 (last year 2,150 employees).
The consolidated entity recognises the productivity benefits to be gained from investing in its
employees to improve motivation and individual skills. The consolidated enfity remains committed fo
ensuring that staff are provided access to appropriate training and development programs.

The consolidated entity has implemented employment policies aimed at encouraging diversity in the
workforce to attract and retain the best people, including a stronger representation of women, All
companies in the consolidated entity are active equal opportunity employers and the consolidated
entity is compliant with the Equal Opportunity for Women in the Workplace Act 1999.

Segment Performance

The segment performance of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 is as follows:

Business Segment Segment Sales Trading EBIT
2011/12 2010/11 | 2011/12 | 2010/11
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Bathrooms & Kitchens 297,759 332,379 60,965 78,903
Heating & Cooling 166,156 195,298 13,259 17,195
Door & Access Systems 138 568 114,025 14057 | 17,158 |
Discontinued Operations 12 441 84 796 (7.792) 7,246
Total 614,924 726,499 80,489 120,502
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share -
continuing operations

2011/12 2010/11
cents cents
13.2 210
15.3 19.6

Review of Operations

A review of the operations of the consolidated entity and the results of those operations for the
financial year ended 30 June 2012 is provided in the Managing Director's Review of Operations.

State of Affairs

Changes i the state of affairs of the consolidated entity during the financial year resulted from the
divestment of the remaining non-core operations. Details of the changes are as follows:

s On 30 September 2011, the consolidated entity sold Sebel Furniture Limited and related entities
("Sebel") to Krueger International, Inc. Sebel is shown as a discontinued operation in the 2011/12
Financial Statements.

*  On 31 December 2011, the consolidated entity sold the Caroma North American business to
Sustainable Selutions International. Caroma North America is shown as a discentinued operation in
the 2011/12 Financial Statements,

In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the
consolidated entity during the financial year, other than disclosed in the Directors’ Report or referred
to in the Financial Statements or notes thereto.

Dividends

Dividends paid or declared by the Company to shareholders since the end of the previous financial year

were:

Declared and paid during 2011/12 financial year

Date of Payment
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Dividends Cents per share Total Amount Franked
$'000

Final 2010/11 85 25,630 Fully Franked

Ordinary

Interim 2011/12 95 28,645 Fully Franked

Ordinary

& October 2011

4 April 2012




Franked dividends declared and paid during the year were franked at the corporate tax rate of 30%.
Declared after end of the 2011/12 financial year

After balance date the following dividend was approved by the directors. The dividend has net been
provided and there are no income tax consequences.

Bividend Cents per share Total Amount Franked Date of

$'000 Payment
Final 2011/12 85 25,670 Fully Franked 4 October 2012
Ordinary

The financial effect of the dividend has net been brought to account in the Financial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2012 and will be recognised in subsequent Financial Reports.

The record date for the final dividend is 14 September 2012 and the dividend payment date is 4
October 2012, The Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) will be of fered to shareholders for the final
dividend and a discount of 2.5% will apply to shares subscribed for under the DRP. The receord date
for DRP participation is 14 September 2012,

Significant Events after Balance Date

On 14 June 2012, the consolidated entity entered into a scheme implementation agreement (SIA) fo
acquire all of the shares of Q Technology Group Ltd (QTG). Subsequent to 30 June 2012, the SIA
was terminated by the parties due to a condition precedent in the SIA becoming incapable of
satisfaction. On 16 July 2012, the consolidated entity signed an indicative non-binding heads of
agreement with QTG for the acquisition of API Services and Solutions Pty Ltd (API) for $14 million on
a debt free basis. API is a supplier of safes, locks, alarms and locksmithing services to commercial
premises. The consolidated entity is continuing its discussions with QTG on the acquisition of APT.

On 14 August 2012, the directors declared a final ordinary dividend of 8.5 cents per share in respect
of the financial year ended 30 June 2012. The dividend will be fully franked at the 30% corporate tax
rate, The total amount of the dividend is $25.670 million (last year $25.630 million). In accordance
with Accounting Standards, the dividend has not been provided for in the Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June 2012,

There has not been any other matter or circumstance, other than that referred to in the Financial
Statements or notes thereto, that has arisen since the end of the financial year, that has significantly
affected, or may significantly affect, the operations of the consclidated entity, the results of those
operations, or the state of affairs of the consolidated entity.

Likely Developments and Expected Results

Likely developments and expected results of the operations of the consolidated entity are provided in
the Managing Director's Review of Cperations.

In the next financial year, the consolidated entity will continue to pursue strategies for increasing the
profitability and market share of the businesses. There will be further investment in research and
new product development to ensure that the consolidated entity generates the best possible returns
from the businesses and fo create competitive advantage.
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Further information on likely developments and expected results of the operations of the consolidated
entity have not been included in this report because the directors believe it would be likely to result in
unreaschable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

Environmental Regulation and Performance

Environmental Licenses

The consolidated entity holds licenses issued by environmental protection and water authorities that
specify limits for discharges to the environment which arise from the operations of entities that it
controls. These licenses regulate the management of discharge to air, storm water run-off, removal
and transport of waste associated with the manufacturing operations in Australie. Where appropriate,
an independent review of the conselidated entity’s compliance with license conditions is made by
external advisers,

The consolidated entity, in conjunction with external advisers, monitors storage and freatment of

hazardous materials within perticular operations, Prior to any discharge to sewers, effluent is treated
and monitored to ensure strict observance with license conditions. The directors are not aware of any
breaches of the consolidated entity's license conditions during the financial year ended 30 June 2012

Envirenmental Remediation

In previous financial years, the consolidated entity investigated and reported two environmental
contamination issues at factory sites at Revesby NSW and Eagle Farm Queensland, The Revesby site
is leased and occupied by McIlwraith-Davey Py Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the ultimate parent,
GWA Group Limited. The Eagle Farm site was previously occupied by Corille Limited (formerly Rover
Mowers Limited) and was exited in a prior financial year following the sale of the Rover Mowers
business,

During the year, the remediation activities at the Revesby site were conducted in accordance with the
Voluntary Remediation Proposal approved by the NSW Office of Envirohment and Heritage. The
remediation activities were substantially completed during the 2011/12 year and a Site Audit
Statement declaring the site is suitable for on-going use has been obtained. McIlwraith-Davey Pty Ltd
intends to exit the site on lease expiry in April 2013 and on-going monitoring will be required for two
years in accordence with the Groundwater Management Plan for the sife,

Whilst there was no legal obligation to remediate the Eagle Farm site, the Board approved targeted
remediation activities te mitigate potential future environmental liabilities, The remediation activities
were completed during the 2011/12 year. It is expected that a Site Audit Statement declaring the
site is suitable for on-going use and with no on-going monitoring obligations will be obtained during the
2012/13 year. The consolidated entity no longer occupies the site.

Indemnification and Insurance of Directors and Executives
Indemnification

The Company's constitution provides that, fo the exfent permitted by the law, every current (and
former) director or secretary of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all costs, expenses and liabilities which results directly or indirectly from facts or
circumstances relating to the person serving (or having served) in their capacity as director or
secretary of the Company, but excluding any liability arising eut of conduct invalving a lack of good
faith or conduct known to the person to be wrongful or any liability to the Company or related body
corporate,
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Insurance Premiums

The Company has paid premiums in respect of insurance contracts which provide cover egainst certain
liabilities of every current (and former) director and officer of the Company and its controlled
entities. The contracts of insurance prohibit disclosure of the total amount of the premiums paid, or
the nature of the liabilities covered under the policies.

Premiums were paid in respect of every current (and former) director and officer of the Company and
controlled entities, including the directors named in the Directors' Report, the Chief Financial Officer
and all persons concerned or taking part in the management of the Company and its controlled entities.

Remuneration Report - Audited

The Remuneration Report provides information about the remuneration arrangements for key
management personnel (KMP'), which includes non-executive directors and the most senior group
executives, for the year ended 30 June 2012. Reference to ‘executives' in this report means KMP
executives.

The report covers the following matters:

1. Board role in setting remuneration strategy and principles;

2, Relationship between remuneration policy and company performance;
3. Description of non-executive director remuneration;

4, Description of executive remuneration;

5. Details of director and executive remuneration;

6. Key terms of employment contracts: and

7. Legacy equity based remuneration plan.

1. Board role in setting remuneration strategy and principles

GWA's strategy is to provide remuneration that is fair and sufficient to attract and retain
management and directors with the experience, khowledge, skills and judgment required for the
consolidated entity's success.

The key principle is that remuneration varies between the median and third quartiles (or higher if
warranted by superior performance) relative to companies of comparable size and scope to GWA.

The Board engages with shareholders, management and other stakeholders to continuously refine and
improve executive and director remuneration polices and practices. The Nomination Commiftee is
responsible for determining the remuneration arrangements for the non-executive directors, with the
ahnual maximum aggregate amount approved by shareholders. The Remuneration Committee deals with
remuneration matters for executives,

Both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee have the authority to engage
external professional advisers without seeking approval of the Board or management.

During the reporting period, the Remuneration Committee obtained advice from Guerdon Associates
for the 2012/13 executive remuneration review, Guerdon Associates does not provide services to
management and is considered to be independent. In response to feedback from shareholders and
advice from Guerdon Associates a number of important changes were implemented last year to the
2011/12 remuneration structure which is consistent with GWA's remuneration strategy. These changes
are detailed in this report.
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1.1 Executive remuneration strategy - 2011/12 changes

As a result of shareholder feedback on current practices, GWA's executive remuneration structure
was changed with effect from the start of the 2011/12 financial year.

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that the mix of fixed and variable remuneration for
executives is appropriate for the cyclical, mature, competitive and lower growth industries in which

GWA operates, having regard to

o the need fo protect the market leading positions of established products against large global
competitors in order to maintain competitiveness: and

o the importance of developing growth oppoertunities whilst maintaining stability of earnings and a
high operating cash flow to fund the fully franked dividend payments to shareholders.

The Committee acknowledges that this strategy has generally resulted in the approval of a higher
proportion of fixed remuneration and a lower proportion of variable remuneration for some execufives

compared to peer companies.

Key concerns raised by shareholders and the changes implemented to GWA's remuneration strucfure
for the 2011/12 financial year are summarised in the table below.

Shareholder Concern

GWA Board Re sponse

Fixed remuneration for Managing Director and
some executives is above third quartile
measured against peer companies

Managing Director’s fixed remuneration will be
frozen for three years from 1 July 2011 1o 30
June 2014

Long term incentives are too high

Long term incentives are subject to "cliff"
vesting with low targets

Reduce long term incentives with more emphasis
on short term incentives with part deferred
subject to further testing and potential
clawback

Remove "cliff" reward vesting that may
encourage excessive risk taking as a
performance threshold is appreached. The Long
Term Incentive plan has graduated vesting
scales to more closely align reward with
performance

Performance targets have been increased for
reasonably achievable levels and strefch targets
applied for full vesting

Incentives could encourage excessive risk taking

Shift some of the incentive from longer term to
shorter term reguirements for growth with
payment of deferred amounts subject to
further testing and potential clawback

A higher proportion of short term incentives
has been set to strefch targets requiring
sustainable performance
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1.2 Managing Director's remuneration

The Managing Director's fixed remuneration has been established over the past 9 years of service fo
shareholders where he has consistently delivered value and positioned the consolidated entity for
sustainable performance. The Managing Director has been instrumental in the restructuring of the
GWA businesses over recent years to compete in the cyclical Australian building industry with the high
Australian dollar increasing import competition in its primary markets,

During that time, the Company has successfully executed its growth strategies through the
divestment of its non-core businesses and surplus properties, and through strategic acquisitions fo
provide options for growth and expand its core Australian building fixtures and fittings business. The
strong financial position has enabled the Company o maintain high dividends and fund growth
opportunities as they arise.

During the 9 years of service, the Managing Director has received only modest incentive payments due
to the low activity levels in the building sector. The Board believes the above changes to the 2011/12
remuneration structure represented an appropriate balance between addressing the issues raised by
shareholders and maintaining a competitive compensation package for key executives,

2. Relationship between remuneration policy and company performance
Remuneration is linked to performance by:

e Applying challenging financial and non-financial measures to assess performance; and
s Ensuring that these measures focus management on operational and strategic business objectives
that create shareholder value.

GWA measures performance on the following key corporate measures:

» Earnings per share (EPS') growth;

¢ Total shareholder return (TSR') relative to companies with similar scope, operations, custotmers or
products; and

s Economic Profit, defined as the pre tax profit after deducting the cost of capital for funds used.

Remuneration for all executives varies with performance on these key measures together with
achievement of key personal goals which underpin delivery of these financial outcomes and are linked
to the consolidated entity's performance review process.

The following graph shows the Company's relative performance over a rolling 3 year period to 30 June
2012 compared to the peer group companies used for the 2012 grant of Performance Rights. The
companies comprise Reece Australia Limited, Brickworks Limited, CSR Limited, Goodman Fielder
Limited, Super Retail Group Limited, Premier Investments Limited, Breville Group Limited, GUD
Holdings Limited, Hills Industries Limited, Bradken Limited, Dulux Group Limited, Pacific Brands
Limited, Adelaide Brighton Limited and Ansell Limited.
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The following is a summary of key shareholder wealth statistics for the Company over the last five
years:

Financial Year | Trading EBIT* Trading EPS* Total DPS Share Price
($m) (cents) (cents) ($)
2007/08 99.4 215 19.5 2.80
2008/09 B6.4 17.9 i 18.0 2.30
2009/10** 94,5 18.5 18.0 3.01
2010/11** 9.9 19.6 18.0 275
2011/12** 75.4 15.1 18.0 2.10

*excludes restructuring expenses
**excludes discontinued operations

The remuneration and incentive framework which has been put in place by the Board has ensured that
executives are focused on both sustaining short term operating performance with moderate long term
strategic growth. This has contributed fo the Company generating the above shareholder returns
despite lower building activity and the global financial crisis. This includes a fotal of 91.5 cents in fully
franked dividends paid to shareholders in the last five financial years which includes 1.5 cents in
special dividends.

The decline in the Company's profitability performance in 2011/12 has been primarily driven by the
cyclical decline in domestic dwelling construction and falling house prices impacting renovation activity.
Import competition has increased with the high Australian dollar which has led fo the need for
substantial restructuring in the past year.

The remuneration and incentive framework has allowed the Company to respond to the downturn. 5TI
payments to executives related to Economic Profit targets are lower in 2011/12. LTI rewards fo
executives related to earnings per share growth have failed to meet targets to date. However, STI
payments related to performance improvement and restructuring in the downturn have encouraged
ranagement to respond quickly and make long term decisions to maintain competitiveness and
profitability.
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The Managing Director's key performance goals and outcomes subject to STI incentive payments for

2011712 is provided in the following table:

2011/12 Goals

Results

Achieve leading safety performance fo work towards
an injury free workplace

Complete divestiments of remaining non-core
businesses and surplus properties

Execute an acquisition to grow the core building
fixtures and fittings business

Continuous improevement in safety performance aver
the past 7 years has been consolidated with a further
14% decline in the total injury frequency rate in
2011/12

The non-core Sebel Furniture and Caroma Morth
Americon businesses were successfully divested
during the year to complete the sale of the remaining
non-core businesses and enables the group to focus
on growing in the core Australian building fixtures
and fittings segment

The surplus Norwood and Coburg properties were
successfully divested during the year with the gains
on sale fully offsetting the restructuring costs in the
Caroma and Gainsborough businesses

A heads of agreement wos signed in July 2012 for the
aequisitien of APT Locksmiths, which will provide
strategic opportunities for growth in the commercial
access systems market. This followed the
termination of the Scheme Implementation
Agreement with Q Technology Groeup Ltd, the owner
of APT Locksmiths, due to the non-satisfaction of o
condition

Execute the restructuring of the Carema Wetherill
Park sanitaryware factory and Gainsborough door
hardware business at Blackburn and Kyneton

The restructuring at Carema and Gainsborough was
successfully completed during the year to improve
competitiveness which resulted in an 8% reduction in
employee numbers and was funded by the sale of the
gurplus Norwood and Coburg properties. The benefits
of the restructuring are expected to flow through in
2012/13 and future periods

Beliver performonce improvement

Material cash flow benefits were derived by
rationalising unprofitable products, lowering inventary
levels, improved delivery performance and reducing
credit claims. The strong operating cash flow from
continuing operations was similar to last year despite
the 25% reduction in trading EBIT

Complete the Dux factory upgrade to budget and plan
fimetable

The Dux factory upgrade was largely complete at the
end of June 2012 but there have been unexpected
delays and some cost overruns. The upgrade has
established a lower cost base and the benefits are
expected to flow through in 2012/13 and future
periods
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3. Description of non-executive director remuneration
There has been no change to the basis of non-executive director fees since the prior reporting period.

Fees for non-executive directors are fixed and are not linked to the financial performance of the
consolidated entity. The Board believes this is necessary for non-executive directors fo maintain
their independence.

At the 2004 Annual General Meeting, shareholders approved non-executive director fees up to an
annual maximum aggregate amount of $1.09 million (including statutory superannuation). The actual
fees paid to the non-executive directors are outlined in the Remuneration Tables (see section 5.1).

Non-executive director remuneration consists of base fees and statutory superannuation, plus an
additional fee for each Board committee on which a director sits. The payment of committee fees
recoghises the additienal time commitment required by directors who serve on one or more
committees, Non-executive directors are not able to participate in the executive incentive schemes or
the GWA Employee Share Plan.

The Nomination Committee obtains market benchmarking data from an external remuneration adviser
to ensure that the level and allocation of nen-executive director remuneration is market based and
fairly represents the responsibilities and time spent by the directors on Company matters. The
benchmarking survey from Guerdon Associates in 2011 sampled the same companies used for executive
remuneration benchmarking (see section 4.2) and found the fees received by most non-executive
directors were positioned at about the 60" percentile.

Retirement benefits are not available for non-executive directors of the Company, other than
statutory superannuation.

4. Description of executive remuneration

4.1 Executive remuneration structure

Executive remuneration has a fixed component and a component that varies with performance.

The variable component ensures that total pay varies with performance. The short term incentive
('STI') provides rewards for performance over a 1year period. The long ferm incentive (LTT) provides
rewards for performance over a 3 year period,

The maximum total remuneration that can be provided to an executive is capped, with maximum
incentive payments expressed as a percentage of total fixed remuneration. Total fixed remuneration
for the purposes of the incentives includes superannuation and non-monetary benefits, The STI and

LTI maximum percentages are less than most market peers given the emphasis on stability of earnings,
cash flow and dividends and the relatively high fixed pay for some executives.
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4.1.1 Managing Director remuneration structure

The 2011/12 incentives structure for the Managing Director is provided in the table below:

Managing Director

2011/12

Mnximum short term
incentive % of fixed
remuneration

LTI % of fixed
remuneration (grant
date fair value)

Total performance
pay as % of fixed
remuneration

80

40

120 |

The 2011/12 STI for the Managing Director is provided in the table below:

Managing Directaor

2011/12

Personal Financial Total Reasonably Maximum for
Goals Targets Achievable achieving stretch
goals
20 30 50 80

4.1.2 Other Executives remuneration structure

The 2011/12 incentives structure for other executives is provided in the table below:

Other Executives

2011/12

Other Executives

Maximum short term
incentive % of fixed

LTI % of fixed
remuneration (grant

Total performance
pay as % of fixed

remuneration date fair value) remuneration
B0 30 B0
The 2011/12 STI for the other executives is provided in the fable below:
Personal Goals Financial Total Reasonably Maximum for |
Targets Achievable achieving
_ stretch goals
20 20 40 50 |

2011/12

The 2011/12 changes implemented for all executives, including the Managing Director, resulted ina
shift in incentives from longer term to shorter term requirements to focus on responding to the short
term challenges posed by cyclical factors, sustain competitiveness, deliver value and growth, and
maintain cash flows for dividends. This is supported by a requirement that 50% of the financial
component of the STI be deferred and subject to further testing and potential clawback with
payment af the discretion of the Board at the time of signing the following year's annual audited
Financial Statements, The further testing involves the Board verifying the integrity of the
achievement of the STT financial targets. Interest at market rates will be earned by the executives
on the deferred component.

The paytment of the STI at the reasonably achievable level has a greater likelihood of achievement
than not, if management successfully implement improvement plans, and the maximum level has stretch
targets with a one in three year likelihood of achievement,

4.2 Fixed remuneration

Fixed remuneration is the sum of salary and the direct cost of providing employee benefits, including
superannuation, motor vehicles, car parking and fringe benefits tax.
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The level of fixed remuneration is set:

o to retain proven performers with difficult to source experience in manufecturing and global
supply chain management;

¢ toattract external recruits with depth and breadth of expertise usually acquired while
working with larger companies; and

s inrecognition that the primary focus in recent years has been on conserving market leadership,
cash flow and dividends,

Based on an independent survey by Guerdon Associates for the 2012/13 executive remuneration
review, the fixed remuneration for most executive positions at GWA remains above the 50" percentile
for companies of comparable revenues. However, the Guerdon Associates survey concluded that
compared to the prior year, fixed remuneration for most GWA executives is closer to market levels.

The 25 listed companies included in the survey provided reliable and robust statistical remuneration
benchmarking and shared some common attributes with GWA, but few direct competitors and good
position matches exist for precise remuneration positioning. Judgment was therefore exercised by
the Remuneration Committee in defermining appropriate remuneration levels, having regard to the
background and experience of the individuals.

While market levels of remuneration are monitored on a regular basis, there is no contractual
requirement or expectation that pay will be adjusted each year. Where these levels are above the 75™
percentile, fixed remuneration will either be frozen or increases will be below market levels, In this
regard, the Managing Director agreed last year to a freeze on his fixed remuneration for 3 years fo
30 June 2014,

4.3 Short-term incentive ('STI')
4.3.1 5TT overview

The STI plan provides for an annual payment that varies with performance measured over the
Company's financial year to 30 June 2012, The STI is aligned to shareholder interests as executives
will only become entitled to the majority of payments if profitability improves (allowing for the
building cycle), with maximum incentive payments above the reasonably achievable level linked directly
to shareholder wealth creation. Total incentive payments for 2011/12 to executives and management
represent less than 3% of earnings before interest and tax. As noted in section 4.1, the maximum 5TI
that can be earned is capped to minitmise excessive risk taking.

The STI payment is made in cash after finalisation of the annual audited Financial Statements. As
outlined in the Remuneration Tables, 50% of the financial target component of the STI has been
deferred for the executives that achieved their STI financial targets for 2011/12. The deferred
component will be subject to further testing to confirm the integrity of the achievement of the STI
financial targets following finalisation of the 2012/13 audited Financial Statements, Interest will be
earned by the executives at market rates on the deferred component,

4.3.2 STI performance requirements
4.3.2.1 Personal Goals
The personal goals set for each executive includes achievement of key milestones fo improve or

consolidate the Company's or business unit's strategic position. The goals vary with the individual's
role, risks and opportunities.
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The achievement of personal goals reinforces the Company's leadership model for improved
performance management through achieving measurable personal goals established during the
performance review process at the beginning of the financial year. Strict criteria have been
established by the Remuneration Committee for the setting of personal goals in order for them to be
approved. The goals can be drawn from a number of areas specific to individual roles but must be
specific, measurable, aligned, realistic and time based. Weightings are allocated to the personal goals
based on their importance fo the individual's role and the Company.

Personal goals include both measurable financial goals and measurable business improvement goals. The
measurable financial goals to improve Economic Profit are financial outcomes which the individual aims
to achieve through their effort and their team, Examples may include achieving working capital
reductions, sales/margin targets or cost reduction targets. The measurable business improvement
goals are outcomes which drive business improvement and which may or may not have an immediate
financial outcome but will improve the business in the short to medium term. Examples may include
improved safety and environmental performance, delivering a major project on time and budget,
market share and productivity improvements or implementing a change or strategic initiative.

Assessment of the personal goals STI component for 2011/12 has been determined following a formal
performance review process conducted for the executives. The performance reviews for the
executives are conducted semi-annually by the Managing Director with the outcomes approved by the
Remuneration Committee. The Managing Director's performance review is conducted semi-annually by
the Chairiman with the outcomes approved by the Remuneration Committee. The personal goals of the
executives for 2012/13 were established at the performance reviews.

The inclusion of persenal goals in the remuneration structure ensures that executives can be
recognised for good business performance whether or not the Company or business unit achieves its
STI financial performance targets. The Company operates in the cyclical building industry so
fluctuations in profitability can eccur through the cycle which is out of the conirol of the executives.
The reward for achievement of personal goals provides specific focus on responding to changes in the
economic cycle, as well as on continuous performance improvement. Hence the personal goals are a key
part of the Company's performance tanagement process.

4.3.2.2 Financial Targets

Financial performance targets are based on a combination of improving revenue, margin and/or
improved Return on Funds Employed (ROFE). This will be calculated using the principle of Economic
Profit which is the pre tax profit after deducting the cost of funds used in generating the profit.

The formula is:
Economic Profit = EBIT ~ (Funds Employed x pre fax cost of capital)
Pre tax cost of capital is 15% per annum

(NB: Where significant restructuring has been undertaken in a division, trading EBIT will be
used for the calculation of Economic Profit)

Under the STT framework, a business unit head may receive an STI payment if business unit Economic
Profit has grown, although the overall corporate Economic Profit may not have grown, and vice versa,

The 'reasonably achievable' and 'stretch’ STI financial targets are determined by the Remuneration
Committee at the beginning of the financial year following approval of the divisional and corporate
budgets by the Board.

Pago | 14



The budget performance levels are taken into consideration in setting the financial targets but
different fargets may be set (either higher or lower than budget) depending on the degree of
difficulty in achieving the budget. Performance between the ‘reasonably achievable’ and 'stretch’ levels
is rewarded on a pro rata basis,

The Board retaing the right to vary from policy in exceptional circumstances. However, any variation from
policy and the reasons for it will be disclosed, There were no variations from policy during the period.

For the 2011/12 year the Company's lower profitability performance has meant the STI financial
targets at both the divisional and corporate level have not been achieved, except for the Brivis
business unit which achieved its financial targets at the 'reasonably achievable’ level. This is reflected
in the STI cash bonus amounts in the Remuneration Tables,

4.4 Long-term incentive (LTI')
4.4.1 LTI overview

Executives participate in a LTI plan, This is an equity based plan that provides for a reward that varies
with Company performance over three year periods. Three years is considered fo be the maximum
time period over which financial projections and detailed business plans can reasonably be made.

The LTI is provided as Performance Rights, with each right entitling the holder fo an ordinary share in
the Company (or in limited cases to a cash payment), subject to meeting financial performance hurdles
and the holder remaining in employment with the Company until the nominated vesting date,

If the vesting conditions and performance hurdles are achieved, ordinary shares will be issued to the
participants at no cost. Performance Rights are cancelled if the performance hurdles are not met.

The performance hurdles for the LTI are selected by the Remuneration Committee. Half of the
Perforimance Rights are based on Total Shareholder Returns (TSR) for GWA compared to a peer group
of companies (which is a relative performance requirement) and half of the Performance Rights are
based on growth in Earnings Per Share (EPS) (which is an absolute performance requirement). The EPS
performance condition is calculated as net profit after tax as set out in the Company's annual audited
Financial Statements divided by the weighted average of ordinary shares on issue. The Board has
discretion to make reasonable adjustments to base year EPS where it is unduly distorted by significant
or abnormal events. Any such adjustments will be disclosed.

A participant may not dispose of the ordinary shares issued under the LTI until the seventh
anniversary of the grant date and the shares are subject to a holding lock upon issue. There are
limited circumstances where a participant may dispose of the shares before the end of the seven year
period, including cessation of employment with the Company or where the Board grants approval, In
cohsidering an application from a participant to dispose of the shares, the Board will consider whether
the sale is in the best interests of the Company, relevant policies and regulations and other factors.

Ih accordance with the rules of the LTI plan, the executives are prohibited from entering into hedging
transactions or arrangements which reduce or limit the economic risk of holding unvested Performance

Rights.

The LTI rules do not allow for re-testing of the performance hurdles after the initial performance
period.
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In the event of a change of control, all outstanding Performance Rights granted to executives will vest
and be exercised into ordinary shares, except to the extent the Board determines in its discretion
that the vesting conditions are unlikely to be satisfied. If the Board makes the decision that not all
Performance Rights will vest on a change of control, then all remaining Performance Rights will lapse.

For the 2012 LTT grant, the proportion of Performance Rights that can vest will be calculated and the
shares will vest in August 2014 subject to achieving the performance hurdles,

All unvested rights will be forfeited if the Board determines that an executive has committed an act
of fraud, defalcation or gross misconduct or in other circumstances specified by the Board.

4.4.2 LTI performance requirements

For the 2012 LTI grant, the "cliff" vesting for the performance hurdles in the 2011 grant was

replaced by vesting scales graduated with performance and more demanding performance hurdles. The
comparator group for the 2012 LTI plan was also expanded to include selected comparator group
companies used by Guerdon Associates for benchmarking executive fixed remuneration levels for the
2011/12 remuneration review.

4.4.2.1 TSk Hurdle

The performance hurdles and vesting proportions for the TSR performance measure that applied to
the 2012 LTI grant is outlined in the table below.

TSR of GWA Group Limited relative to Proportion of Performance Rights to Vest
TSRs of Comparator Companies if TSR hurdle is met
Less than the 50™ percentile 0%

| 50™ percentile 25%
Between the B0™ percentile and 75™ Straight line vesting between 25% and 50%
percentile
75t percentile or higher 50% (i.e. B0% of total grant)

The group of comparator companies for the TSR hurdle includes 14 domestic ASX listed companies
with comparable market capitalisation or revenues, including:

Reece Australia Limited, Adelaide Brighton Limited, Ansell Limited, Brickworks Limited, CSR Limited,
Goodman Fielder Limited, Bradken Limited, Dulux Group Limited, Super Retfail Group Limited, Premier
Investments Limited, Pacific Brands Limited, GUD Holdings Limited, Breville Group Limited and Hills
Holdings Limited.

The Board has discretion to adjust the comparator group to take into account events including, but not

limited to, takeovers, mergers, de-mergers and similar transactions that might occur over the
performance period.
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4. 4.2.2 EPS Hurdle

For the 2012 LTI grant, EPS growth is measured over the three years from 1 July 2011 o 30 June
2014, The EPS hurdle is calculated as net profit after tax, as set out in the Company’s annual audited
Financial Statements, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares on issue. The base
year EPS for the 2012 LTI grant was 210 cents. The Board did not exercise its discretion to adjust
the EPS figure.

The performance hurdles and vesting proportions for the EPS performance measure that applied o
the 2012 LTI grant is outlined in the table below.

Compound annual EPS Growth Proportion of Performance Rights to Vest |
if EPS growth hurdle is met
| Less than 3% per annum 0%
3% per annuim 25% ]
Between 3% and B% per annum Straight line vesting between 25% and 50%
| 8% or higher per annum 50% (i.e. 50% of total grant)

4.4.3 Changes for 2013

The LTT plan has been part of the remuneration structure for the executives since its approval by
shareholders in 2008, with lower level management participating in the legacy GWA Employee Share
Plan referred to in section 7 below. The Remuneration Committee proposes to cease using the legacy
GWA Employee Share Plan due to its lack of effectiveness as a long term incentive and expand the use
of the LTI plan fo select lower level management that formerly participated in the legacy GWA
Employee Share Plan. These changes are proposed to commence from the 2013 LTI grant and will be
reported in next year's Remuneration Report.

5. Details of director and executfive remuneration
5.1 Remuneration Tables
Details of the nature and amount of each element of remuneration of each director of the Company

and other key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2012 are outlined in the
Remuneration Tables below:
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Short-term Long-term Post-employment
Employes Walteof Retention | Super- Proportion of | 571 cash | ST cash
Salary & ST cash | MNon- Share- . Termination ;
Share Bonus | annuation ; Total remuneration Bonus Eonus
Fees forus | Monetary Based : Benefits , 3
$ $a) S7b) Flan psets Benefits $ ¥ performance | vestedin | ferfeifed
Interest ) Eie) &5 based year in year
) X % %
Man=-Executive Directors
& Metrath, Chairmarn FO015 | 306,465 - - - - - 27,581 - 334,045 - = -
2017 2944678 - - - - - 26,521 - 321199 - - -
D MeDonough, Deputy Chairman 2012 69,078 - - - - - 49 998 - 112,076 - - -
2011 61,082 - - - - - 45 917 - 107,599 - - -
R Andersen, Nen-Executive Dirsctor 2012 61,054 - - - - - 50,293 - 111,347 - - -
2011 57,124 - - - - - 45,940 - 107 066 - = -
W Bartfedt, Nop-Exesutive Diractar 2012 136631 - - g - - 12 296 4 148 927 - - =
S0rf 131,376 - - - - - 11,824 | - 143 200 - = -
P Birtles, Non-Executive Director 2012 | 118,066 - - - - - 10,626 - 128,692 | - - =
(Appointed 24 Nevember 2010) 2011  &1282 - - - - 5513 = 66,765 - . .
| F Muleahy, Non-Executive Director 2012 | 108520 - 2,606 - - - 2,766 - 120,352 - - -
{Appointed 24 Nevember 2010) 2o B0 AT2 - - - - - 5,443 - 45,915 - - -
Executive Directors
P Srowley, Maraging Director 2012|1413 522 PRO30D | 102055 82,420 | 204650 - 50,000 - 2.134 447 BT 23 78
2017 1428 814 | 600,600 9& 804 92,393 | 408,000 - 50,000 - 2678611 377 b4 36
B Thornton, Executive Director 2012 365207 | 72000 Bg21| 18466 | 299825 -| 24639 - 519,158 19.6 40 6
201F 282 469 73,636 G 5ag 16,541 40,542 - 32,583 - 455 T&0 28,1 75 28

* Comparative STI cash bonus ameunts fave been adjusted to reflect the actual amounts paid.
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Shert-term Long-term Post-employment
Valie af g i
Salory & | STECHSH | Noi- Employee St Retentron 5435;- Tl o Pmparfrarrlaf STT cash | STI cash
Share Bonus annuation 2 Total remuneration Sonus Banus
Fees Bonus | Monetary Based : Benefits . ]
s £ Plan e o Bensfits $ $ performance | vested in | forfeited
#(a) (&) Intarest P e F; based year in viear
Bie) b4 oA a
Executives |
W Saxelby, Chief Financial Officer el 12,113 135,100 16548 | 54549 - - 48,000 | - 867,202 156 | 40 &0
SCdT| 603,343 | 202650 13715 50098 | (34.167) - 48,000 - 283 641 191 75 25
M Evans, Ohief Exeautive - &4 2012 521156 108,180 I 13,047 - 26,750 - 50,000 - 749 132 220 E1] B
Bathrooms and Kitchens )
2017 BOBTh6 57,800 40,537 - 131,280 - 50,000 - 785383 241 i) 75
& Ciiver, Shief Executive - &WA Door 2002 444 203 173,650 29 330 - 40,242 - 49 999 - 737,324 280 T8 22
and Access Systems (1)
{Appointed I May 2012) S0 37T 236 112 407 31,229 - 68,708 - 45 051 - &45 671 291 82 18
L Patterson, Chief Executive - WA E0M2| 449 524 57,850 9162 46,689 A0 242 - 57 086 - 660,538 14.9 2h 74
Heating and Coeling | [
S0fr 380,150 110,361 7661 A2 257 68,708 | 400000 38,145 - 1047 273 55.3 76 24
Feter Crossiey, Genaral Manager - 2012 254,529 32167 13565 - 32,552 - 20,833 - 364345 184 20 80
Emnsborouygh (g} !
(Appointed 1 April 2010) 2011| 248850 26,188 B47 - B4,208 - 36483 - 476,525 19.0 20 B0
& Welsh, General Marager - EWA 2012 B2 125 - 1469 - | (B0,083) - 2725 50,000 h6 236 - - -
Commereial Furmiture
(Ceased empleyment 30 September 2081 322 084 113,818 8,923 . 16,375 - N - 498 335 261 100 0
201l |

= comparative STT cash bonus amourts fiave been adjusted fo reflect the actual amounts paid.
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Motes to the Remuneration Tables

{(a) The Short Term Incentive (STI) cash bonus is for the performance during the financial year ended 30 June 2012 based on the achievement of personal
goals and financial performance targets. Brivis was the only business unit to achieve STI financial performance targets during the year and in accordance
with the STI plan rules, 50% of the amount has been deferred and will be subject to further testing as outlined in the Remuneration Report. The STI cash
bonuses are paid annually following the end of the preceding financial year. The amounts have been determined feollowing individual performance reviews
and have been approved by the Remuneration Committee,

(b) The short term non-monetary benefits include the provision of motor vehicles, medical benefits membership, salary continuance and life insurance and any
applicable fringe benefits tax thereon.

(¢) The Employee Share Plan interest includes an amount representing commercial interest that would have been charged during the period on the executives
outstanding employee loan balances owed to the Company had these loans not been interest free. The benefit is classified as a long term benefit in the
Remuneration Tables which reflects the long term nature of the incentive.

(d) The Long Term Incentive (LTI) Plan was approved by shareholders at the 2008 Anhual General Meeting. The outstanding Performence Rights at 30 June
2012 were granted to executives in each of the years 30 June 2010, 2011 and 2012 and are subject to vesting conditions and the achievement of the EPS
and TSR performance hurdles over the three year performance periods. During the year, 50% of the Performance Rights in respect of the 2009 LTI
grant vested following the achievement of the TSR hurdle and 50% of the Performance Rights lapsed as the EPS hurdle was not achieved. The fair value
of the Performance Rights granted in each of the years were calculated using Binomial option pricing model (EPS hurdle) and Mente Carlo simulation (TSR
hurdle) valuation methodelogies and allocated to each financial vear evenly over the three year performance period. If the EPS and TSR performance
hurdles are not achieved, then no benefits will be received by the executives under the LTI plan.

(e) The Board approved the payment of a retention bonus for Mr L Patterson in 2011 due to the rapidly changing regulatory enviranment and the increased
business complexity facing the Dux business. The retention bonus was subject to the achievement of performance hurdles linked to value creation
including market share and EBIT performance.

(f) Mr Geoff Oliver was appointed Chief Executive - GWA Door & Access Systems on 1 May 2012, He was formerly General Manager - Group Development
where he served as Interim General Manager - Brivis from 1 April 2010 to 30 April 2012,

(g) Mr Peter Crossley was considered Key Management Personnel until the appointment of Mr Geoff Oliver to the position of Chief Executive - EWA Door &
Access Systems on 1 May 2012,
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5.2 Share based payments
5.2.1 Performance Rights

The table below shows details of the Performance Rights granted o key management personnel during
the year ended 30 June 2012 and in prior years that affects compensation in this or future reporting
periods.

The testing of Performance Rights granted on 27 February 2009 in respect of the three year
performance period of 1 July 2008 to 30 June 2011 occurred on 16 August 2011, The EPS hurdle was not
achieved and 50% of the Performance Rights lapsed (in the prier period). The TSR hurdle was achieved
at the 67" percentile for the Comparator Companies and 50% of the Performance Rights vested and were
automatically exercised into ordinary shares at no cost to the executives. A total of 470,000 shares
were purchased on-market for the executives at an average price of $2.32 following the achievement of
the TSR hurdle in respect of the 2009 LTI grant.

4 4 , Issue price
Mumber E Fair valve
of rights Srant date™ :ﬁf ff;ﬁ;id af rights at a’::jfmif;e
granted gmn; fr'm‘e S -~
| rights granted |
Executive Directors
P Crowley, Managing Director 2012 | 260000 | 17 February 2012 - 3 376,700 2,36
2011 | 300,000 | 21 February 2011 - - 802,500 3,00
2010 | 305000 12 March 2010 - 50 785,375 284
2009 | 355000 | 27 February 2009 50 - 583975 246
R Thornten, Executive Direcfor 2012 45,000 | 17 February 2012 - - 65,025 235
2011 30,000 | 21 February 2011 - - 80,250 3.00
2010 30,000 12 March 2010 - 50 77,250 2.84
2009 35,000 | 27 February 2009 50 - 57,595 2.46&
Executives
W Saxelby, Chief Financial Officer | 2012 = = = : = 3y
2011 - - - - < -
2010 i = - % = -
2009 | 100,000 | 27 Februory 2009 50 - 154,500 246
M Evans, Chief Executive 2012 76,000 | 17 February 2012 - - 108,375 2356
EWA Bathrooms and Kitchens
2011 75,000 | 21 February 2011 - - 200625 3.00
2010 75,000 12 March 2010 - 50 193,125 2.84
2009 - - - = - -
& Oliver, Chief Executive 2012 | 55,000 | 17 Februory 2012 - - 79478 2.35
EWA Door and Access Systems
{Appointed f May 2012} 2011 50,000 | 21 February 2011 - = 133,750 300
2010 50,000 12 March 2010 - 50 128,750 2.84
2009 55,000 | 27 February 2009 50 - 80,475 246
L Pattersan, Chief Executive 2012 55,000 | 17 February 2012 - - 79,475 2.35
GWA Heating and Cooling
2011 50,000 | 21 February 2011 - - 133,750 3.00
2010 50,000 12 Mareh 2010 - 50 128 750 2.84
s 2009 55,000 | 27 February 2009 50 - S0 47D 246
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Feter Crossley, General Manager - | 2012 | 50,000 | 17 February 2012 1 : 72,250 235
Gainsborough

(Appointed 1 April 2010) 2011| 45000 21 February 2011 . -] 120375 300
2010 | 40,000 | 12 March 2010 : 50| 103,000 284

= 2009 E . . : : =
& Welsh, General Manager 2012 - = = = = =

EWA Commercial Furniture
{Ceased employment 30 Sepfember | 2011 - = - -
2041)
2010 35,000 12 March 2010 - 100 90,125 2084
2009 40,000 | 27 February 2009 &0 65,800 2.46

* The issue price used to determine the number of rights of fered to all participants during the year,
including Mr Crowley and other key management personnel, was $2.35 being the volume weighted average
price of the Company's shares calculated over the 20 trading days after the Company’s Annual General
Meeting on 25 October 2011, The grant dates and corresponding fair values per right in the above table
have been determined in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Fair values have been
caleulated using Binomial option pricing model (EPS hurdle) and Monte Carlo simulation (TSR hurdle)
valuation methodologies. The fair value of rights issued during the year under the EPS hurdle was $1.84
per right and the TSR hurdle was $1,05 per right.

All of the above rights carry an exercise price of nil. The rights granted on 12 March 2010, 21 February
2011 and 17 February 2012 will vest on the date of the release to the Australian Securities Exchange of
the Company's annual audited Financial Statements for the years 30 June 2012, 2013 and 2014
respectively, subject to the achievement of the performance hurdles. The rights granted to Mr Crowley
and Mr Thornton were approved by shareholders at the 2009, 2010 and 2011 Annual General Meetings in
accordance with ASX Listing Rule 10.14.

Rights were forfeited where an employee ceased employment with the Company during the year in
accordance with the rules of the Long Term Incentive Plan. For the rights granted to key management
personnel on 12 March 2010, the Company has not achieved the EPS hurdle for the performance period of
1 July 2009 to 30 June 2012, This has resulted in the forfeiture of 415,000 rights with a value of
$1,213,250. The number of rights outstanding at 30 June 2012 also represents the balance yet to vest.

6. Key terms of employment contracts
6.1 Motice and termination payments

The specified executives in the Directors’ Report are on open-ended contracts, except for the Managing
Director, Mr Peter Crowley, whose employment contract specifies an initial ferm of twelve months with
subsequent rolling terms of twelve months.

The employment contract for Mr Crowley provides that if either the Company or Mr Crowley wishes fo
terminate employment for any reason, three months notice of termination is required. The Company
retains the right to terminate the employment contract of Mr Crowley immediately, by making payment
equal to three months salary in lieu of providing notice. On termination by the Company, Mr Crowley will
be entitled to receive payment of twelve months salary.

For the other specified executives, the Company is required to give reasonable notice of fermination of
up fo six months. The Company retains the right fo ferminate the employment contracts of the
executives immediately, by making payment equal to the relevant notice period (of up to six months) in
lieu of providing notice.
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The executives are also entitled to receive on termination of employment their statutory entitlements of
accrued annual and long service leave, fogether with any superannuation benefits.

The termination arrangements for the executives are specified in their employment contracts and any
other termination payments require approval of the Remuneration Committee. Shareholder approval is
required for termination payments in excess of twelve months salary,

Performance Rights held by executives under the LTI plan will lapse upon the cessation of employment
with the Company.

Any loan to executives, management and senior staff under the legacy GWA Employee Share Plan must be
repaid in full upon the cessation of employment with the Company. Details of loans outstanding to key
management personnel under this plan are detailed in the notes to the Financial Stafements,

7. Legacy equity based remuneration plan

The GWA Employee Share Plan is a legacy GWA equity based remuneration plan in which executives and
lower level management retained an interest during the reporting period. The plan was formerly available
to executives up to 2008 but following the introduction of the LTI plan referred to in section 4.4 above,
was restricted to lower level management and select staff that deserved recognition of their
performance and to encourage employee share ownership, The Remuneration Committee has approved
anhual share allocations to lower level management and staff under the plan since 2008 as part of their
leng term incentive arrangements.

Details of the GWA Employee Share Plan is outlined below:

Plan Type of award Year/s Performance requirements Service
hame of grant requirements
GWA Under the plan, employees | Annually | The Board may invite employees | The service
employee | are provided with a non- from to participate in the plan to condition
share interest bearing unsecured | 1993 to | encourage and reward sustained | requires that the
plan loan from the Company to 2012 higher performance from employee remains
acquire shares in the management and senior staff employed. On
Company at market velue. who merit recognition of their | termination the
The loan is repaid through performance and are integral te | loan must be
dividends, or in full upan an the future success of the repaid
employee ceasing Company

employment with the
Company. The loan is full
recourse, meaning the
employee bears the risk of
company share price
movements below the issue
price and must repay the
Company in the event of a
shortfall, To ensure the
plan represents an
effective long term
incentive, the employee is
subject to a two year
restriction on the sale of
the shares which
commences from the time
the shares are acquired
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Directors' Meetings

The number of meetings of directors (including meetings of Committees of directors) held during the
financial year ended 30 June 2012 and the number of meetings attended by each director were as

follows:
Board Audit Remuneration
Director Committee Committee
(- A B A B A B
& J Mc6Grath 10 10 4 4 3 3
D D McDohough 10 10 - - - -
P C Crowley™ 10 10 E - : ;
RM Anderson i0 10 - - - -
W J Bartlett 10 10 4 4 3 3
J F Mulcahy 10 10 - - 3 3
P A Birtles 10 10 4 4 - =
R J Thornton 10 10 - - - -
MNote:

Momination
Committee

—
1—-‘|—- fr=]

A - Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year B - Number of

meetings attended

Wp ¢ Crowley attends Committee meetings by invitation of the Board
©IR T Thornton attends Committee meetings as Company Secretary

As at the date of this report, the Company had an Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Board of Directors. The charter for each Committee outlines its role and
responsibilities, a summary of which is provided in the Corporate Governance Statement in the Annual

Report.
The members of the Audit Committee are:
s  Mr W Bartlett (Chairman)

o Mr P Birtles
v Mr G McGrath

The members of the Remuneration Committee are:

»  Mr W Bartlett (Chairman)
¢ Mr.J Mulcahy
»  Mr G McGrath

The members of the Momination Committee are:
s Mr G McGrath (Chairman)

= Mr D McDonough
»  Mr W Bartlett

Details of the Committee members qualifications and experience are located in the Annual Report.
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Non-Audit Services

Details of the non-audit services provided by the External Auditor, KPMG, during the financial year ended
30 June 2012 are outlined in Note 8 of the Financial Statements. Based on advice from the Audit
Committee, the directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services is compatible with the

general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Corperations Act 2001, The nature and
scope of each type of non-audit service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration

The Lead Auditor's Independence Declaration is set out in the Annual Report and forms part of the
Directors’ Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Rounding

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/100 issued by the Australian Securities
Investment Commission relating to the rounding of amounts in the Directors' Report.

Amounts in the Directors’ Report have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the
hearest thousand dollars, unless etherwise stated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

T V1

G McGrath P C Crowley
Chairman Managing Director

Brisbane, 14 August 2012
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 30 June 2012

In thousands of AUD

Continuing operations
Sales revenue

Cosl of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Cher expensos
Results from operating activities
Finance income
Finance expenses

Met financing costs

Profit before tax
Income lax expense
Profit from continuing operations

Discantinued operations
(Loss)income from discontinued operations, net of income fax
Profit for the period

Other comprehensgive income

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations, net of income tax
Transkation differences for disposed business transferred to profit or loss, net of
income fax

Effeclive portion of changes in falr value of cash flow hedges, net of income fax
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax
Total comprehensive income for the period

Earnings pet share
Basic eamnings per share (cents per share)

Diluted earnings per share {cents per sharg)
Continuing operations

Basic earnings per share {cents per share)
Diluted earnings per share (cenis per share)

* Refer to discontinued operations — note 3.

Note 2012 2011
Restated™
2 602,128 641,574

{384,978) (405,394)
217160 236,230
! 12,847 473
(93,788) (85,470)
(50,718) 48, 718)
5 {13,452) {2,605)
72,038 99,810
1,979 2243
(1 §,228) (17.418)

9 (14247 (15,175)
57,791 84,735
10 {11,618) {25,705)
46173 59030
3 {6,518) 4,329
39,655 63,359
(199 (776)
2,975 -
{1,600 (1,706)
1,176 {2,482)
40,831 80,877
17 13.15 21.03
ii 13.08 20.87
1531 19.59
1523 18.44

The statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjuncticn with the notes to the finzncial statements set out on

pages 7 fo 53.



GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Consolidated statement of financial position

As at 30 June 2012

in thousands of AUD

Currant assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trado and other receivables
Inveantories
Income tax receivabla
Other
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Receivables
Deferred tax assets
FPraperty, plant and eguipment
Intangiblo assels
Cther
Total non-current assets
Total assets
Current liahilities
Trade and other payables
Employee benefils
Income tax payahlo
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Mon-current liahilities
Loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Employee benefits
Provisicns
Total non-current liahilities
Total liahilities
MNet assets
Equity
Issued capital
Reserves
Reatained earnings
Total equity

Note

12
13
14
15

13
16
17
18

19
21
15
23

20
16
21
23

2012 2011
30,528 36,573
4a 187 126,408
91,7688 104,160

1,564 493

2,691 3,275

225,736 270,910

4,747 4. 659

17,488 17,085
113,202 118,860
383,537 308,278

3,521 4,171

522 585 542 853
748,321 813,763
88,009 76,422
13,636 15,828
164 10,832

13,857 13,865

85,651 116,747
205,000 234 B55

n 27

12,346 14,146

8,330 8 182

225 676 257,021
321,337 373,768
425,084 439,805
388,930 357,844

(2.480) (3,276)

30,543 45,427
426,084 439,895

The statement of financial position is to be read In conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on

pages ¥ to 63,



GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2012

In thoyzands of AUD

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from oporations

Interest paid and facility fees

Interest received

Income taxes paid

Met cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of proparly, plant and equipmeant
Acquisition of property, plant and eguipment
Acquisition of intangibles

Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of employee share loans
Share lisfing fees paid
{Repayment)/drawdown of bank bills
Dividends paid

Net cash from financing activities

MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Effect of exchanges rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

Note 2012 2011
703,744 813,586
(604,859) (687.507)
98,885 126,079
(17,284) (18,197)
1,305 1,646
 (22,407) (20,970)
32 60,499 88,558
18,361 130
(21,339) (21,239)
(4,4589) (3,488)
5 (36,756)
3 23,743 2.276
18,308 (69,077)
1,235 1,882
(5) ®)
(29,874) 5,000
(54,275) (54,198)
(82,919) (47,321)
(6.114) (17,840)
36,573 54,914
69 (501)
12 30,528 36,573

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 7 1o 53



GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 30 June 2012

in thousands af ALD

Balance at 1 July 2010

Total comprehensive income for the period
Prafit for the period

Oiher comprehensive income

Foreign currency translation difierences for foreign
operations, net of income tax

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash
flew hedges, net of income tax

Tetal cther comprehensive income

Tetal comprehensive incoma far the penod
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity

Share-based payments, net of income tax
Dividends to shareholders

Issue of ordinary shares

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 30 June 2011

Share Translation Hedging l:om?;ll:g fin Retained
capital reserve reserve bk earnings Total
396,539 (4,654) 1.058 1,680 36,266 431,089
- - - - 63,359 63,358
. (778) - - i (778)
- - {1.708) - : {1,708}
- (776) (1.708) - - (2,482)
. (776) (1,708} - 63,359 60,877
o = - g9z22 - 822
5 < 5 5 (54,198) (54,198)
1,305 = - = 1,205
1,305 - " 822 (54,158) {51.971)
387,844 (5430) (48] 2,802 45 427 439.985

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set cut on pages 7 to 53.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Consolidated statement of changes in equity (continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2012

i thoussnds of ALC

Balance at 1 July 2011

Total comprehensive income for the period
Prafit for the period

Other comprefensive income

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign
operations, net of income tax

Translation differences for disposed business
transferred to profit or loss, net of income tax
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash
flow hedges, net of incorne tax

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the period
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in
equity

Share-based payrments, nat of income fax
Dividends to shareholders

lssue of crdinary shares

Total transactions with owners

Ealance at 30 June 2012

Share Translation Hedging c nmEglrl:atiﬁon Retained
capital reserve reserve rsserue earnings Total
397,844 (5.430) (648) 2.802 45427 438,995
- - - - 39855 38,655
- {189) - - - {199)
- 2,975 - - - 2,975
- . (1.600) - = (1,600)
- 2776 (1,600} - 3 1,176
- 2776 (1.600) - 39,655 40,831
" z 4 (389) (264) (653)
- - - - {54,275) (54,275)
1,086 = - - - 1,086
1,086 - - {388) i54,538) i53.842)
388,930 (2,654) {2,248) 2413 30,543 425,884

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 7 to 53.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Signilleant accounting policies

GWA Group Limited (the ‘Company') is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial
report of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 comprises the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘consolidated antity”).

The financial report was authorised for issue by the directors an 14 August 2012,

Statement of compliance

The financial report | & general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
Mustralian Accounting Standards (AASBs") adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board
{(‘AASE') and the Corporations Act 2001, The consolidated entity's financial report complies with
International Finzncial Repotiing Standards ('IFRSs') adopted by the International Accounting
Standards Board ('IASB').

Basis of preparation

The financial report is presentod in Australian dollars which is the Company's functional currency and
the functional currency of the majorily of the consolidated entity. The enlily has elected not o early
adept any accounting slandards or amendments.

The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis excapt that derivative financial instruments
are measured at their fair value.

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 88/100 dated 10 July 1998 and in
accordance with that Class Order, amounts in the financial report and Direclors’ Report have been
rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise sfated,

The preparation of a financial report requires managament to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reparted amounts of assets,
liabilitios, income and expenses. The estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed lo be reasonable under the circumslances, the
resulis of which form the basis of making the judgemeants about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Tha estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimales are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements are described in the following notes:

s nole 18 - measurement of the recoverable amounts of intangible assols
= nole 22 - fair value of share-based payments

s note 23 and 28 - provisions and contingencies

¢ note 25 - valuation of financial instruments

The accounting policies set out below have heen applied consistently to all periods presented in the
consolldated financial roport, The accounting pelicies have boan applisd consistently by all entities in
the consolidated entity.



(c)
U]

(1)

(iii)

GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant nccounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are enfilies controlled by the consclidsted entity. Conlrol exists when the consolidated entity has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policias of an entity so as to oblain
bensfits from Its activities. In assessing control, potential voling righls that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into account. The financial statements of subsidiaries are includead in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Infragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from infragroup
{ransactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements,

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition date, which is the
date on which control is transferred to the consolidated entily.

For ovary business combination, the consolidated entity identifies the acquirer, which is the combining entity
that obtains control of the other combining entities or businasses. Control is the power to govern the financial
and operating policias of an entity so as to obtain benefits from ifs activities. |In assessing control, the
consolidated entiiy takes into consideration potential voting rights that currently are exercisable,

Measuring goodwill

The consolidated entity measures goodwill as the fair value of the consideration transferred including the
recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the net recognised amount {gensrally
fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liahililies assumed, all measured as of the acquisition date.

Caonsideration fransfarred includes the fair valuss of the assels transferred, liabilities incurred by tha
consolidated anfity to the previous owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issued by the consolidated
antity,

Transaction costs
Transaction cosis the consolidated entity incurs in connection with a business combination, such as finder's
fees, legal faes, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulling fees, are expensed as Incurred.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Signilicant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the
{ransaction. Monetary assels and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporling date are
retranzlated to Australian dollars at the foreign exchange rate ruling at thal date. Foreign exchange
differences arising on translation are recognisad in profit or loss. Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreigh currency are retranslated to Australian doliars using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies (hat are stated at fair value are translated to Australian dollars at foreign sxchange rates ruling at
the dates the fair value was determined.

Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabililies of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjusiments arsing on
acquisition, are translated to Australian dollars at foreign exchange rates ruling al the reporting date, The
rovenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated to Ausiralian doliars at rates approximaling fo the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the ransaclions. Foreign exchange differences arnsing on
retranslation are recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the foreign currency
translation reserve (FCTR) In egquity.

When a foreign operation is disposed such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the
cumulative amaount in the translation reserva related to that forelgn operation is reclassified to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on disposal,

Net investment in foreign operations

Foreign exchange differences arising from the retranslation of the nat investment in foreign operations
{including monetary items neither planned to be setlled or likely to be settled in the foreseeable future), and of
related hedges are recognised in the FCTR 1o the extent that the hedge is effeclive. They are released into
profit or loss upon disposal.

Derivative financial Instruments

The consolidated entity uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange and
intorost rate risks arising from operating, financing and investing activifies. In accordance with its treasury
palicy, the consolidated entity does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

[arivative financial instruments are recognised initizlly at fair value. Subseguent to initial recognition,
derivalive financial instrumenis are stated st fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised in profit or loss, unless the derivative qualifies for hedge accounting, in which case the recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the Item being hedged (see accounting palicy ().

The fair valuo of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that the consclidated entity would receive or pay
to tarminate the swap at the reporting date, taking Into account current interest rates and the current
creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted
markot price at the reporling date, being the present value of the quoted forward price.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Hedging

The consolidated entity holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency and interest rate
risk exposures, Embedded derivalives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if
the economic characleristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely
related, a separate instrument with the same terms as the embadded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative, and the combined instrument is not measurad at fair value through profit or loss.

On inilial designation of the derivative as the hedging instrument, the consolidated entily formally documents
tha rolationship between the hadging instrument and hedged item, Including the risk management objectives
and strategy in undertaking the hedge transaction and the hedged risk, together with the methods that will be
used to assess the effeclivensss of the hedging relationship. The consolidated entity makes an assessment,
both at the inception of the hedge relationship as well as on an ongoing basis, whether the hadging
instruments are expeciad to be highly effective in offselling the changes in the fair value or cash flows of the
respective hodged ltems atiributable to hedged risk, and whether the actual results of each hedge are within
a range of 80-125 percent. For a cash flow hedge of a forecast transaction, the transaction should be highly
probably to occur and should present an exposure lo variations in cash flows that could ultimately affect
reported profit or loss.

Derivatives are recognisod initially at fair value and atlributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or
loss as incurred. Subsequent Lo inilial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value and changes
therein are accounted for as described below.

Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designaied as the hedging instrument in a hadge of the variabllity in cash llows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair vair value of the
derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented in the hedging reserve In equity, Any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When Ihe hedged item is a non-financial assat, the amount recognised in equity is included in the cammying
amount of the asset when the asset is recognised. In other cases the amount accumulated in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss in the same period the hedged item affects profit or loss. If the hedging Instrument
no longer meets the criteria for hedge sccounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exerclsed, or the
designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. Il the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, then the balance in equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

Separable embedded derivatives
Changes in the fair value of separable embedded dervalives are recognised Immediately in profit or loss.

Other non-trading dorivatives
When a derivative financial instrument is not designated in a hedge relationship that qualifies for hedge
accounting, all changes in its fair value are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Hedge of monetary assets and liabilities

Whara a derivative financial instrument is used to hodge economically the foreign exchange exposure of &
recognised monetary asset or liability, no hedge accounting is applied and any gain or loss on the hadging
instrument is recognised in profit or loss.

Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

The portion of the gain or less an an instrument used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation that is
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income, and presented in the
foreign currency transtation reserve in equity. The inaffective periion is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Signilicant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of properly, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
lnsses. Costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the coslts of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are localed, and an appropriale proportion
of production overheads. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment,

Where parts of an item of properly, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
soparate items of property, plant and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within “other
income" or "other expenses” in profit or loss.

Subseqguent costs

The consolidated entity recognises in the carrving amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of
replacing part of such an item when that cost is ingurred if it is probable that the future economic benefits
ambodied within the item will flow to the consolidated entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs are recognised in profit or loss as an
expense as incumed.

Depreciation

With the exception of freehold land, depreciation is recagnised in profit or loss as incurred an a siraightine basis
over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of properly, plant and equipment. Land is not depreciated.
The estimated useful lives in the current and comparalive periods are as follows:

e buildings 40 years

o plant and equipment 3-15 years
o fixtures and fitiings 5-10 years
e motor vehicles 4-8 years

The residual value, the useful life and the depreciation method applied to an asset are reassessed annually.

Intangible assets

Research and development

Expenditure on research activilies, undertaken with the prospec! of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge
and undorstanding, is recognised in profit or loss as Incurred.

Expenditure on development activilies, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised only if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the consolidated entity has sufficient resources to complete
development, Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost loss accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Brand names

Acquired brand names are stated st cost. Expenditure incurred in developing, maintaining or enhancing brand
names is writton off against profit from ordinary activities in the year in which it is incurred. The brand names are
not amortised as the directors beliove that the brand names have an indefinite useful life. The carrying values of
brand names are tested each year to ensure that no impairment exists.

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired in business combinations of the consolidated entity is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the consolidated enfily's
interest in the nat fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and confingent liabilities of the acquired business.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant acconnting policies (eontinued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the consolidated entity are measured at cost less accumulated
amoriisation and impainment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expanditure on capitalised intangible asssls is capilalised only when it increases the fulure economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which il relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred,

Amortisation

Amgrtisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the esfimated useful lives of intangible
assels unless such lives are indefinite. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are systematically tested
for impairment at oach balance date. Olher intangible assets arc amortised from the date they are available for
use. The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:

o designs 15 years

e patenis 3-19 years (based on patent term)
e lrade names 10-20 years

o capilalised software dovelopment cosls 4 years

e brand names il

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivahles are inilially measured at fair value and subsequently at their amortised cost less
impairment losses.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable valus. Met realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cosls of completion and selling expenses.

The cost of inventories is based on the first-in first-out principle and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition, In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost includes
an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacily.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with an original maturily date of three
months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an Integral par of the consolidated
entity's cash management are included as a compaonent of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
staterment of cash flows,

Impairment

Non-derivative financial asseis

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporiing date to determine
whether there is ohiective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired If there is objective evidence
of impairment as & result of ong or more events that occurred afier the initial recognifion of the asset, and thal
the loss event(s) had an impact on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated refiably.

Objective evidonce that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider otherwise, indications thal a debtor
or issuer will enfer bankruptcy, the dizappearance of an active market for a securily. In addition, for an
invesiment in an equity security, a significant or prolonged decling In its fair value below its cost is ohjective
evidence of impaiment.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant acconnting policies (continued)

Impairment {continued)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

The consalidated entity considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measurad at amortised cost
{loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investment securities) st both a specific asset and collective Jevel,
All individually significant assets are azsessed for specific impairment, Those found nof to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yel idenfified. Assels
that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together assets with
similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment the consolidated enlily uses historical trends of the probability of defaull,
liming of recoveries and the amount of loss Incurred, adjusied for management's judgement as to whether
current economic and credit conditions are such that the aclual losses are likely to be groater or less than
suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
hetween ils carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the assel's
original effective interest rate. l.osses are recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an aliowance account
against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset confinues to be recognised through the unwinding of the
discount. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised causes the amount of impairment loss
to decrease, the decraase in impairment 1oss is reversed through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognised by reclassifying the losses accumulated
in the fair value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss is the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and ameriisation, and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss recognised previously in profit or loss. Changes in cumulative
impairment losses alidbutable to application of the effective interest method are reflected as a componeant of
interest inceme. If, in a subsequent peried, the fair value of an Impaired available-for-sale debf security
increases and the increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, then the impairment loss s reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in profil or loss.
However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an Impaired available-for-sale equily securily is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the consolidated entity’'s non-financial assets, other than biclogical assets, investmant
properly, inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed al each reporting dale to determine whether there
is any indication of impainmant. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is eslimated.
Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested annually for impairmenl. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carmying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU unil is the greater of its value in usc and its fair value less costs to
soll. In assessing value in use, the estimaled future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 2
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impaiment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that genorates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely
Independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. Subject to an operaling segment ceiling test, CGUs
to which goodwill has been sllocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment is tested reflects the
lowost level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Goodwill acquired in a business
combinalion is allocated to groups of CGUs that are expecied to benafil from ihe synergies of the combination.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant acconnting policies (continued)
Impairment {continued)
Mon-financial assets (continued)
Impairment lossos are recognised in profit of loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group of CGUs), and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the olher assats in the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pre rala basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only
to the extent that tho asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amorisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
are recoghised as a deduction from equily, net of any tax effects.

Dividends
Dividends aro recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared,

Transaction costs
Transaction costs of an eguity transaction are accounted for as a doduction from equity, net of any related
income lax benefit,

Interest-bearing horrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less altributable transaction cosls. Subsequent
to initia! recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are measured at ameriised cost with any difference between
cost and rademption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings on an effective
interest basis,

Employee benefits

Defined contribution superannuation funds

A defined contribution superannuation fund is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligatiens for contributions to defined contribution superannuation funds are recognised as an employee benefit
expense in profit or loss i the periods during which the services are rendered by employees.

Other long-term employee benefits

The consolidated entity’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefil that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using
expected future increases in wage and salary rates including related on-costs and expected selllement datos, and is
discounted to presant value.

Short-term benefits

Liabilifies for employee benefits for wagos, salarias, annual leave and sick leave that are expecled to bo settled
within 12 monthis of the reporting date represent present obligations resulling from employees' services provided to
reporting date, are calculated at undiscounted amounts baged on remunerafion wage and salary rates that tho
consolidated entity expects to pay as at reporting date including related on-costs, such as workers compensation
insurance and payroll tax. Non-accumulating non-menetary benefits, such as medical care, housing, cars and free or
subsidised goods and services, are expensed based on the net marginal cost to the consolidated entity as the
benefits are taken by the employees,
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Employee henefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The grant date fair value of performance rghls granted to employees is recognized as a personnel expense, with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the specified parlod that the paiformance rights vest to employees. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of performance rights for which the related
service and non-market vesting hurdles are met, such that the amount ultimately recognised as an expense is basad
oni the number of awards thal do not meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting
date. For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based
payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no trus-up for differences between expected and actual
outcomes.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the consolidated entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 2
past event that can he estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
sotila the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessmaonts of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

Warranties
A provision for warrantias is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based
an historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against their associaled probabilities.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the consolidated entity has approved a detailed and formal
restructuring plan, and the restructuring has either commenced or has been announced publicly, Future operating
costs are not provided for.

Site restoration

A provision for restoration in respect of owned and leased premises is recegnised when the obligation to restore
arises. The provision is the best estimate of the present value of the expenditure required to setile the restoration
obligation at the reporting date. Fulure restaration ebligations are reviewed annually and any changes are reflected
in the present value of the provision at the end of the reporting period. The unwinding of the effect of discounting on
the provision is recognised as a finance cost.

Trade and other payables
‘rade and other payabies are initially measured at fair value and subsequently at their amortised cosl.

Revanue

Goods sold

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of retums,
discounts and rebates, Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, recovery of the cansideration is probable, the associated costs and possible retum of goods can
be estimaled reliably, there is no continuing management involvemant with the goods and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.

Expenses

Cost of goods sold

Cost of good sold comprises the cost of manufacture and purchase of goods including supply chain costs such as
freight and warehousing.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Significant accounting policics (continued)

Expenses (continued)

Operating lease paymonts

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease incentives receivad are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense and spread over the
leasea term,

Met financing costs

Met finzncing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest method, interest
receivable on funds invested and gains and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in profit or loss.
Borrowing costs are oxpensed as incurred unless they relale to gualifying assets. Interest income is recognised in
profit or loss as il acorues, using the effective interest method.

Income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates 1o a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
Income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using lax rales
enacted or substantively enacled at the reporiing date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
yoars. Currant tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividands,

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporling purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferrad lax is not recognised for:

+ temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects nelther accounting nor taxable profit or loss

= temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates and jointly controlled entities to
five extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresesable future

s taxable tempaorary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax is measured at the {ax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when thay
reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the consolidated entity fakes into account the impact of
uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The consclidatad entily believes that
its aceruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including
interpretations of tax law and prior experienca. This assessment rolies on estimates and assumplions and may
involve a series of judgements aboul fulure events. New information may become available that causes the
consolidated entity to change its judgement regarding the adequacy of axisting tax liahilities; such changes o tax
lizbilities will impact tax expense In the period that such a determination is made,

Deferred tax assets and liabilitios are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assels, and they relate to incoma taxes levied by the same lax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but thay intend to sottle current tax liabllities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities
will be realised simultansously.

& deferred tax assel is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deduclible temporary differences, to the
exlent that it is probable thal future taxable profits will he availzble against which they can be ulilised, Deferrad tax
aszels are reviswed at each reporling date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefit will be realised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued}
Income tax (continued)

Additional income tax expenses that arise from the distribution of cash dividends are recognised at the same time
that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised. The consolidated entily dees not distibute non-cash
assets as dividends to its shareholders.

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consclidated group. Az a
consequance, all members of the tax-consclidated group are taxed as a single entity. The head entily within the lax-
consolidated group is GWA Group Limitad.

Goods and services tax

Revonue, expensas and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and servicos tax (G8T), except where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these circumstances, the GET is
recognised as part of the cost of acguisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial positicn.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, The GST components of cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable lo, the ATO are classified as
operating cash flows.

Earnings per share
The consolidated entity presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS

is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average numbear of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable io ordinary sharehalders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the consolidated entity's business that represents a separale line of
business operations that has been disposed of or is held for sale. Classificalion as a disconlinued operalion occurs
upon disposal or when the oparation meets the criteria to be ciassified as hold for sale if earlier. When an operation
is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of comprehensive income is re-presented as if
the operation had been discontinued from the start of the period.

Segment reporting
Segment results that are reported to the CEO Include items that are directly attributable to a segment as well as

those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly corporaic asseis, head
office oxpenses, lvans and barrowings, treasury financial instruments and income tax assets and labililies.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 July 2012, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. None
of these are expected lo have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity,
excepl for AASB 8 Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the consolidated entity's 2016 consolidated
financial statoments and could change the classification and measurement of financial asscts, The consolidated
ontity doss not plan to adopt this standard early and the extent of the impact has not been detenmined.
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Operating segments

The consclidated entity has three reportable segments, as described belew. The segments are managed separately because they operate |n different markets and require
different marketing strategies. For each segment the CED reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis. The following describes the operations in each of the
consolidated entity’s repertable segmeants;

s Bathrooms & Kitchens - This segment includes the sale of vitreous china toilet suites. hand basins, plastic cisterns, tapware, baths. spas, kitchen sinks, laundry tubs

and bathroom accessaries.

s Door & Access Systems — This segment includes the sale of garage doars, door handles and door access systems,

s Heating & Cooling = Thiz segment includes the sale of water heating and climate control systems.

s Discontinued aperations — This segment includes the sale of education, haspitality and aged care furniture and stadia seating, It also includes the sale of sanitanyware

in the Narth Amercan market.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit before interest and income tax as included
in the management reports that are reviewed by the CED. Segment profit is used to measure performance as managemant believes that such informatian is the maost relevant
in evaluating the results of the segments relative to other entities that operate in these industries.

In thausands of AUS
External sales reventes
Inter-segment revenue
Tatal sales revenus

Segment result before restructuring
Restructuring incomea/(expense}
Segment profitiloss) befora income tax

Depreciation
Amortisation
Capital expenditure

Reportable segment assets
Repartable segment liabilities

Bathrooms & Door & Access Heating & Discontinued Total
Kitchens Systems Cooling operations

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 20m 2012 2011 Iz 2011
297 722 332223 138,568 114,026 165,764 195,129 12,438 84,793 B14,492 728,17
a7 156 = - 392 189 3 3 432 328
297,759 332379 138,568 114,028 166,156 195 298 12,441 B4. 7298 614,924 726.4809
50,965 78,903 14,057 17,158 13,259 17,185 (7792 7 248 20488 120,502
3477 - (B,104; - - - - - (2.627) -
64 442 78,903 7,953 17,158 13,259 17,195 7,782 7,246 77 B62 120,502
5,749 6,739 2455 1,830 3,138 2,927 2E7 1.049 12 609 12,645
4,354 4,250 581 452 1,220 740 - - 5255 5,442
¥.ETA 5373 3,883 1.008 11,495 16,830 185 T47 23,262 23,856
434 493 457,735 108,100 108,578 126,251 126,197 = 33,8945 566,844 TaT 458
33,798 32,244 18,935 12,400 32,233 36,085 = 8,430 B4 968 95,159
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2. Operating segments (eontinued)
Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

in thousands of AUD 2012 W11
Hevenues

Total revenue for reporiable segments 614,924 726,499
Urnaliocated amounts: corporate revenue 74 1486
Efimination of inter-segment revenus {432) (328)
Elimination of discontinued operalions _ [1z,428) {84.793)
Consolidated revanue from continuing operations 502,128 641,674
Profit

Total profit for reportable segments 77,862 120,502
Elimination of discontinued operations 7,792 {7,248}
Restructuring expenses: corporate (G09) i
Unallocated amounts: corporate expenses (12,917) (13,346)
Profit from operaling activities 72,038 60,910
Met financing costs {14.247) (1§1758)
Consolidated profit before tax from continuing aperations 57,791 84,735
Assots

Tolal assets for reporiable segments GGG, 044 727,456
Unallocated amounts: corporate assels” : 81,477 86,307
Consolidated total assels 748,321 813,763
Liahilities

Tolal liabilities for reportable segments 84,965 08,15%
Unallocated amounis: corporate liabililies” 238,371 277,609
Consolidated total liabilities 321 .ﬂfﬂ' 373,768

* Corporate azsefs include cash and cash equivalonts, tax assets, employes share loans and lreasury financial instrurnents at
fair value. Comarate labifities include fozns and borrowings, tax lisbillles and treasury financial instrumeants at fair value.

Reconciliations of other material items

In thousands of AU 2012 2011
Depreciation

Total depreciation for reporiable segments 12609 12,645
Unallocated amounts: depreciation on corporaie assels 242 193
Consolidated total depreciation 12,851 12,838

Amortisation

Total amortisafion for reportable segments 6,255 5442
Unallocated amounts: amoriisation on corporate assels 114 173
Consolidated total amortisation 6,369 5,615

Capital expenditure

Total capital expenditure for reportable segments 23,262 23,956
Unallocated amounts: corporate capital expendituro _ 2,536 774
Consolidated total capital expenditure 25 798 24 727
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Operating sepments (continued})

Geographical segments

The business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, but operate mainly in one geographical area being

Australia. Sales offices are operated in New Zealand and Asia. Sales revenue from geographical areas outside
Australia comprised only 5% of fhe consolidated entity's total sales revenue for the current year (2011: 6%).

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Ausiralia Unallocated Consolidated
in thousands of ALID 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Extarnal sales revenus 584,531 684,264 30,035 42,003 614,566 726367
Segment assois 743,303 802,367 5018 11,396 748,321 813,763
Capital expenditura 25,693 24,618 105 0@ 25,798 24 727

Major customers

The consolidatod entity conducts business with 3 customers where the gross revenue generated from each
customer exceeds 10% of the consolidated entity's total gross revenue. Gross revenue from these customers
represent approximately $57,000,000 (2011: $111,000,000), $84,000,000 (2011: $97,000,000) and
approximately $71,000,000 (2011: $65,000,000) respectively of the consolidated entity's tolal gross revenues for
tho current year of approximately $574,000,000 (2011: $725,000,000), The difference between gross revenus
and reported sales revenue js due to industry rebates. The revenues from these customors are reporied in the
Bathrooms & Kitchens, Door & Access Systems and the Healing & Cooling segments.
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Discontinued operations

During the period ended 30 June 2012, the commercial furniture business was sold with an effective date of 30 September
2011, The North American sanitaryware business was also sold, with an effective date of 31 December 2011, The operating
activities of both businesses were not discontinuing cperations or classified as held for sale as at 30 June 2011, The
comparative statoment of comprehensive income has been re-presented to show the discontinued operations separately from
continuing operations.

In the prior reporting period, the final payment of $2 276,000 for the sale of the Rover busingss was also received.

In thowsends of AUD 2012 2011
Results of discontinued operations

Revanuag 12,441 B4 795
Expenses {15,002) (¥7,128)
Results from operating activities (2.561) 7,668
Income tax _as2 {2,917}
Results from operating activities, net of income tax (2,199) 4,751
Loss on sale of the discontinued operations (5,231) (422}
Income tax benefit on loss on sale of discontinued

operations 2 912 =
(Loss)profit for the period (@,518) @4,329
Basic loss per sharo {canis per share) (2.16) 1.44
Diluted loss per share (cents por share) {2.15) 1.43
In Wotsands of AUD 012 2011
Cash flows from discontinued operations

Met cash (used in)from operating activities {1,975) 18,557
Met cash from investing aclivilies 23,559 1,546

Met cash from discontinued operations 21,684 18,103
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Lviseontinued operations (continued)

in thouzands of AULY

Effect of disposals on the financial position of the
consolidated entity

Trade and ather receivables
Invenlories

Property, plant and eguipment
Cash and cash equivalonts

Other current assets

Trade and other payables

Income tax receivable

Frovisions

Employee benefils

Income tax payable

Deferred tax assels

Intangible assals

Met assets and liabilities

Disposal costs

Foreign currency translation reserve

Consideration proceeds
Cash and cash eqguivalents disposed of
Met cash inflow

Other income

I thousands of AUD

Foreign currency gains - realised

Foreign currency gains - unrealised

Met gain on dizposal of properly, plant and equipment
and intanglble assels

Other

Other expenses

In thousands of AU

Fareign currency losses - realised

Foreign currency losses - unrealised

Met loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Restruciuring expenses

Achulsition cosls

Disposal costs

2012 2011
(4,140) -
(8,560) -
(4.262) z

{354) =
(635) =
3,681 =
(28) a
354 =
2,689 .
136 -
{1,027) -
{12,400) .
(24,544) 2
{1.809) (422)
{(2.975) -

(29,328) (422)
24,097 2276
(354) -
23,743 2276
2012 2011
233 22
1,204 31
9,632 -
1,778 420
12,847 473
2012 2011

86 1,277

53 200

- 178

13,180 -

133 800

- 45

13,452 2,605
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Hestructuring expenses

fn thousands of AUD 2002 011
Restructuring income — gains on disposal of praparty 9,854 -
Restructuring cxpenses {13,180) -
Tax benefit 3,847 -
Met restructuring income after tax G2 -
Personnel expenscs
Jir thousands of AUD 2012 2011
Wages and salaries — including superannuation
contribulions, annual leave, long service lzave and on-
cosis 148,211 145,676
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions 321 g22
148,632 146,588
Aumditors! remuneration
In AUD 2012 2011
Audit services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Auslralia:
Audit and review of financial reports 455 000 472 .000
Other regulstory services 3,500 3,000
Oversess KPMG Finns:
Audil and review of financial reports _ 12,000 15,000
470,500 490,000
Other services
Auditors of the Company
KPMG Australia
Taxation services 28,682 40,806
Other senvices 45,660 -
Overseas KPMG Fimms:
Other assurance services - 27655
Taxation services 31132 62,915
106,474 131,378
Met financing costs
in thomsands of AUD 2012 2011
Finance income
Interest income on call deposits 1,226 1,569
Unwinding of discount on loans and provisions 674 595
Other N 79 78
1,979 2,243
Finance expense
Interest expense on financial liabilities 10,061 10,842
Interest expense on swaps 674 392
Facility fees on financial lizbilities 4,897 5423
Establizshment fze amoriisation 521 545
Other T3 212
16,226 17,418
Met financing costs 14,247 15,175
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Income tax cxpense
Recognised in the income statement

In thousands of ALD 2012 2011
Current tax expense

Current year 14,818 24,583
Adjustments for prior years (2,374} (465)

12,444 24,118

Deferred tax expanse
Origination and reversal of termporary differances (828) 1,687

Income tax expense from continuing
operations 11,618 25,705

Income tax (benefityexpense from discontinued

operations {excluding loss on sale) {362) 2917
Inconte tax benefit on loss on sale of discontinued

operations {912) -
Total Income tax expense in income statement 10,344 28,622

Numerical reconclliation between tax expense and pre-tax net profit

In thousands of ALD 212 2011
Profit before tax 49,999 91,881
Income tax using the domestic tax rate of 30% (2010
30%) 15,000 27,684
Increase in income fax expense due o
Mon-deduclibie expenses 241 453
Mon-deductible acquisition and disposal costs - 396
Mon-deductible share-based payments - 277
Tax losses not recognised 437 726
Decrease in incoma tax expense dus o
Effect of tax rate in forelgn jurisdictions 10y {B85)
Capital gains offset with prior capital losses {(2,477) .
Deductible share-based payments (118} -
Rebateable investmenl allowance - (27)
Rebateable ressarch and developrment _ (357) (247)
12,718 29,087
(Over)funder provided in prior years (2.374) {465)
Income tax oxpense on pre-tax net profit 10,344 28,622

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity

In thousands of AUD 2012 011
Derivatives (631) (729}
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Larnings per share
Basic earnings por share

Calculation of basic earnings per share at 30 June 2012 was based on the profit atiribulable to ordinary
shareholders of $35,655,000 (2011; $63,359,000) and a weighted average number of ordinary shares of

301,662,000 (2011: 301,221,000) calculated as follows.

Cents per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
I thousands of AUD

Conlinuing operations

Discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
In thoussnds of shares

Iz=ued ordinary shares at 1 July
Effect of shares issued

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 30 June

Diluted earnings per share

202 2011
13.15 21.03
2012 201
45,173 59,030
(6,518) 4,329
38,655 63,350
2012 201
301,625 301,103
137 118
301,662 301,221

Calculation of diluted samings per share at 30 June 2012 was based on the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholdars of $39,655,000 (2011: $63,359,000) and a weighted average number of erdinary shares of

303,232,000 (2011; 303,571,000) calculated as follows:

Cents per share

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted)
In tousands of AUD

Continuing operations

Dizcontinued operations

Profit for the yoar

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
In thousands of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)
Effect of performance rights on issue
Weighted average number of ardinary shares {diluted)

2012 2011

13.08 20.87

2012 2011
46,173 59,030

_ (8.518) 4,329
39,655 63,359
2012 2011
301,662 301,221
1570 2,350
303.232 303,571
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Cash and cash equivalents

in thousands of AUD 2012
Bank balances 12,998
Call deposits 17,630
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement

of cash flows 30,528

2011
14,216
42,357

36,573

The consolidaied entity's exposure to interest rale risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and

liabilities are disclosed in note 25.

Trade amd other receivables

Iy thodsands of AUD 2012 2011

Current

Trade receivables 80,545 103,609

Prowision far impairment {1,666) (2,200)

Derivalives used for hedging 186,495 20,373

Employee share loans Ga0 a7

Other 1,148 3,989
28,187 126,408

Non-current

Employee share loans 4,747 4,654

Tha consolidated entity's oxposure to credit and currency risk and impairment losses related to trade and

other receivables are disclozed in note 25,

Inventorics

It thousands of AUD W12
Raw materials and

consumables 21,310
Wark in progross 2571
Finished goods 67.885

91,766

2011

20,524
5,676
77,960
104,160
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15, Current tax pssets and liabilitics

The current tax asset for the consaolidated enfity of $1,564,000 {2011 $493,000) represents the amount of
income taxes recoverable in respect of current and prior pericds. The current tax liability for the consolidated
enfity of $189,000 (2011: $10,632,000) represents the amount of income taxes payable in respect of the
current period. In accordance with the tax consolidation legislation, the Company as the head entity of the
Australian tax-consolidated group has assumed the current tax asset [ (liability) initially recognised by the

members in the lax-consolidated group.

16, Deferred tax assels and liabilitics

Recognised deferred tax assets and liahilities
Deferred tax assels and liabilities are atinbutable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Mot
In thouseands of ALUD 2012 2011 2012 2014 2012 2011
Property, plant and equipmant 562 823 (1,144) {951) (582) (128)
Intangible assets 509 349 (5,240) (5.826) (4,731}  (5477)
Inventorios 2 578 2,545 - - 2.4078 2 545
Employee benefils 7,762 8,963 - - 7762 5,963
Provisions 8,082 8,838 - - 8,082 8,838
Other items 4,462 2,687 (83) (370} 4,379 2317
Tax assets [ (liabilities) 23,955 242056 (GA4G6T) (7.,147) 17,488 17,058
Set off of tax (6,467) (7.120) 6467 7,120 = -
Met tax assets / (liabilities) 17,488 17,085 - {27) 17,488 17,058
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assels have nol been recognised in respect of the following items:
In thousands of AUD 012 2014
Capital losses 7,779 A 246
Revenue losses 1,463 773
The deductible tax losses accumulated at balance date do not expire under current tax |egislation.
Defarred tax asssts have nol bean recognised in respect of these items because it is nol probable thal
future taxable profit will be available against which to offset the tax benefit of these losses,
Movement in temporary differences during the year
Balance FReocognised  Recognised  Acquired in Digposals Balanco
I thousands of AUD 1duly 10 I inceme Im equity business 30 Jume 11
combinations
Property, planl and equipment 388 (G116} - - - (128)
Intangible assets (3426) 112 = (2,163) - {5,477)
Inveniories 2,311 349 E 195 - 2,545
Employee benefils 7,980 278 = 685 - 8,963
Provisions 11,229 {1,802; - 411 - §.738
Cther items 288 402 729 = - 1,417
18,778 {1,5687) [ {B62) - 17,058
Balance Recognlzed Recognlsed  Acquired in Disposals Balanco
i thowsands of AUD 1July 11 inincoms in oguity huslness 30 June 12
comblnations
Properiy, plant and equipment {128) (691) - - 237 {582)
Infangible assets (5.477) 823 - - {77) (4,731)
Inventories 2,545 33 - - = 2578
Employen benefits 8,863 (399) = - {BO2) 7,762
Frovisions 9,738 (1,338) . - (320) 8,082
Other iltems _1AMT 2,306 531 = {65) 4379
17,058 826 6531 - {1,027) 17,488

27
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Property, plant and equipment

In thowusands of AL

Cost

Balance at 1 July 2010
Acnuisitions through business
combinations

Additions

Disposals

Effect of movements in
foraign exchange

Balance at 30 June 2011

Balance at 1 July 2011
Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Effect of movements in
foreign exchange
EBalance at 30 June 2012

Depreciation and Impairmant losses
Balance at 1 July 2010

Depraciation charge for the year
Disposals

Effect of movements in foreign
exchange

Balance at 30 June 2011

Balance at 1 July 2011
Depreciation charga for the ysar
Disposals

Effect of movements in foreign
exchange

Balance at 30 June 2012

Carrying amounis
At July 2010

At 30 June 2011
At 1 July 2011
At 20 June 2012

Land and Plant and Matar Work in
fudbdings  equipmant vohicles PrOgress Total
ha 532 176,572 1,131 7,046 244 181
- 5,366 a71 =1 f,343
1,000 10,360 B 9,789 21,239
= (5,459) (287) - {5,846)
- {215) 33 - {2431_
5a,622 186,624 1,682 17,741 265,669
h9B22 186,624 1,682 17,741 265,669
364 16,078 a0 4 868 21,5359
{11.284) (34,333 (4003 (342) (46,3649)
9,534 4.021 - {13,655) -
- 70 4 - 74
58,226 172,458 1,316 8,713 240,713
(6,246)  (130,748) (858) - {139,850)
(1,003) {11,630 (205) - {12,838)
- 5,203 329 - 5 532
- 131 16 - 147
(9,249) (137.042) (718) - {147,009)
(9,2449) (137,042) (718) - (147,009}
(1,081) (11,548) (242) - {12,851)
2,794 249 514 178 - 32 487
= {46) (2) = (48)
{7.516) {119,122) (783) - {127.421)
50,286 45 826 273 7.946 104,351
50,373 49 582 964 17,741 118,680
50,373 40 6582 Q54 17,741 118,660
50,710 53,336 533 8,713 113,282
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18. Intangible assets

In thousands of AU Software Brand names  Tradenames, Goodwill Total

tle=igns and

patents

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2010 18,663 321,13 14,230 22,283 376,307
Acauisiticns through business combinations o - T.317 24,075 31,392
Additions 3,488 - - - 3,488
Eifect of movements in foreign exchange a {(20) - : (20
Balance at 20 Junes 2011 22,151 321,111 21,547 45,358 411,167
Balance at 1 July 2011 22,151 32111 21,547 46,358 411,167
Additions 4458 - - - 3,542
Disposals {486) {12,400} - - (12,886)
Effact of movements in foreign exchange - B - - &
Balance at 30 June 2012 26,124 308,717 21,547 48,358 402,746
Amortization
Balance at 1 July 2010 (6,687) - (587) - (T.274)
Amortisation for the year (4,610 - {1,005} - {58515
Disposalz : _ = E _
Balance at 30 June 2011 {11,297) - (1,582) - (12,889
Balance at 1 July 2011 {11.297) - (1,582) - (12,889)
Amorlisation for the year {5,148) - (1,220) - (6,389
Disposals 49 - - - 49
Balance at 30 Juns 2012 (16,397} - {2,812) - (18,209)
Carrying amounts
At 1 July 2010 11,976 321,131 13,643 22,283 369,033
At 30 June 2011 10,854 321,111 19,955 46,358 398,278
At 1 July 2011 10,854 321,111 18,855 45,358 398,278
At 30 June 2012 9,727 308,717 18,735 46,358 383,537

29
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Intangible assets (continued)

Carrylng value of brand names and goodwill for each cash generating unit

In thousands of AUD 2012 2044
Bathrooms & Kitchens 284,117 284 111
Door & Access Syslems 44 124 #4,124
Heating & Cooling 26,834 26,834
Commercial Furniture | - 12,400

355,075 AGT 469

Impairment testing for brand names and goodwill
The recoverable amounts of all brand names and goodwill were assessed at 30 June 2012 based on internal value in use

caleulations and no impairment was identified for any segment (2011: nil for all segments).

Valua in use was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the confinuing use of the business

unit and to which the brand or geodwill is sttached =nd was based on the following assumptions:

s Cash flows were projected based on aclual operating results and business plans of the units approved by the Board, with
projected cash flows to five years before a terminal value was calculated. Maintainable earnings were adjusted for an
altocation of corporate ovorheads.

s Managemont used a constant growlh rate of 2.5% (2011; 2.5%) in calculating terminal values of the units, which does not
excesd the long-term average growtih rata for the industry.

v A pre-tax discount rate of 12.26% was used (2011: 14.08%).

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the Bathrooms &
Kitchens, Door & Access Systems and Heating & Cooling industries and are based on both external sources and internal

sources (historical data).

Trade and other payahles

In thowrsands of AUD 2012 2011

Current

Trade payables and accrued

EXPENSES 45,059 50,111

Dervatives used for hadging 21,706 21,295

Mon-trade payables and acerued

expenses 1,324 h.015
68,009 76422

The consolidated entity's exposure to currency risk and liquidity risk related to trade and other payables are disclosed in
note 25,
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Loans amd borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the consolidated entity's loans and borrowings, which are
measured at amortised cost. For more information about the consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate and foraign
currency risk, see note 25,

Mon-current liabilities

it thousands of AUD 2042 2011

Unsecurad cash advance facilities 205,000 234 656

Terms and debt repayment schedule Consolidated

Currancy Yaar of 2z 2012 2011 2011

I thovsands of AUD maturity Face valug Carrying Faca valug Carrying
amount amaount

Unsecured cash advance facilities AUD 2014 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

Unsecurad cash advance facilitios AUD 2016 5,000 5,000 30,000 30,000

Unsecured cash advance facilitios usD - _ - - 4,656 4,656

205,000 205,000 234,666 234 858

The unsecured cash advance facililies mature over the next 2 to 4 financial years and have variable rates ranging from
5.36% - 5.66% &l 30 June 2012 (2011; 2.37% - 7.18%).

Financing facilities

In thovsands of AUD 2012 2011
Bank overdraft 1,000 1,000
Standby letters of credit 12,000 12,000
Bank guarantocs 4200 4 200
Unsecurad cash advance facility 300,000 200,000

317,200 317,200

Facilities utilised at reporting date
Bank overdrall = o

Standby letters of credit 135 -
Bank guaraniees 1 445 G824
Unsecured cash advance facility 205,000 234,656
206,580 235,280
Facilities not utilised at reporting date
Bank overdraft 1,000 1,000
Standby letters of credit 11,865 12,000
Bank guarantees 2 755 3,576
Unszcured cash advance facility 85,000 65,344

110,620 81,920
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Laoans and borrowings (conlinued)

Bank overdraft
The bank overdraft facility available to the consolidated entity is unsecurad. Interest on the bank overdraft facility is
charged at prevailing market rates. No drawdowns against this facility had been made as at 30 June 2012,

Unsecured cash advance facility

Bank loans are provided to GWA Finance Ply Limited under the Multi-currency Revelving Facility Agreement. The
bank loans at reporting date are denominated in Australian dollars. The bank loans are unsecured with @ nagalive
pledge in favour of the banks, and are split between three year and five year terms.

The loans bear interest at market rates and interest is typically payable every 30 to 30 days. The consalidated
enlity hedges its exposure to variable interest rales through interest rate swap transactions.

Letter of credit
The letter of credit facilities are commitled facilities available o be drawn down under the facility agreements. The

limits are specified in the facility agreements.

Bank guarantees
The bank guarantees are commilted facilities available to be drawn down under the facilily agreement. The limits

are specified in the faciity agreement.

Employee benefits

Current

It thovsands of AUD 2012 2011

Liability for annual leave 11,195 13,029

Liability for long-service leave 2,341 2,799

13,536 15,828

Non-current
Liability for long-service leave 12,3456 14,146

Defined contribution superannuation funds

The consclidated entity makes contributions to a defined contribution superannuation fund. Contributions ara
charged against income as they are made based on various pearcentages of each employee's gross salaries. The
amount recognised as expense was $10,440,000 for the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (2011: §11,031,000).

Employee share plan

The employee share plan ('the Plan') was established to assist in the refention and motivation of employess. Al
permanent cmployees of the Company, who are invited to participate, may parlicipate in the plan. The maximum
number of shares subject to the Plan at any time may not exceed 5% of the nominal amount of all Ordinary Shares
on issue, The Plan doss not provide for the issue of options and no options have been issued by the Company at
halance date. The loans must be repaid in full by the employes.

Under the Plan, shares can either be issuad to employees or purchased on market, and in both cases the employee
will pay market price for the shares, During 2012, 480,500 ordinary shares were issued o employses at the market
price of $2.27, being total markst value of $1,090,000 with $5,000 expenditure incurred by the consclidated entity
for listing fees. In the prior year, 422 500 ordinary shares were issued to employees al the market price of $3.10,
being lotzl markel value of 51,310,000 with listing fees of 85,000

As at 30 Juno 2012, loans are issued for 4,051,750 (2011; 3,813,750) shares and the remaining balances of these
loans is $8,769,000 (2011: 38,214,000) or $5,407,000 (2011: 55,286,000 at net present value. During 2012,
dividends of $660,000 (2011: $664,000) were paid against the loans and a further $575,000 (2011: $1,218,000) was
paid by employoos against these loans.




33

GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
22, Share-hased paymenls
The Long Term Incentive (Equity) Plan was approved by shareholders at the 2008 Annual General Meeting.
Under the plan, the Board may offer performance rights to participants which entitle the holder to ordinary
shares in the Company (or in limited cases cash paymenls made), subject to meoting cerain financial
performance hurdles and the holder remaining in employment with the Company until the nominated vesting
date.

The performance hurdles are subject to financial parformance conditions which measure Total Shareholder
Returns (TSR) compared {o a pear group of companies, and growth in Earnings Per Share (EPS). The
performance hurdles are challenging and achievable and focus senior executives on sustained long term
growth consistent with shareholder wealth creation. The plan runs over a three year performance period and
the rights will only vest if the performance hurdles are achieved based on a 50% allocation of each grant o the
two performance hurdles. IF the vesting conditions and performance hurdles are achieved, ordinary shares will
be issusd fo the parlicipants at no cost, If the performance hurdies are not met, then the rights are cancellad
after three yvears.

For performance rights granted to exccutives in the 201112 year, the performance hurdles and vesfing
proportions for the EPS performance measure is outlined in the table bolow. The base year EPS for the 2012
L.ong Term Incentive (Eguily) Plan grant was 21.0 cenis.

Proportion of Performance Rights to Vest if EPS
growth hurdle is met

Compound annual EPS Growth

Less than 3% per annum 0%

3% per annum 25%

Eetwaen 3% and 8% per annum Straight line vesting between 25% and 50%

8% or higher par annum 50% {i.e. 50% of total grant)

For performance rights granted to executives in the 201112 year, the performance hurdles and vesting
proportions for the TSR perfarmance measure is outlined in the table below,

F"rnportion of Performance Rights to Vest if TSR
hurdlo is met

TSR of GWA Group Limited rolative to TSRs of
Comparator Companies

Less than the 507 percentile 0%

1 i
507 percentile

Between the 50" percentile and 75" percentile

| 75" percentile or higher

25%

Straight line vesting between 25% and 50%

50% (i.e. 50% of tolal grant}

Far further details of the Long Term Incentive (Equity) Plan, please refer to the Remunerafion Report.
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22. Sharve-based payvments (continued)

Tranche Grant date

2012

(i) 27/02/2009
(i) 12/03/2010
(iif) 21/02/2011
(iv) 1700212012
2011

) 27/02/2009
{ii) 12/03/2010
(iif) 21/0212011

Expiry date

300062011
3010672012
3010612013
30/06/2014

30062011
30062012
30082013
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Balance at Granted Cancelled Vesied Forfeited Balanco at end of
beginning of during the dusringy tho durlng the  during the year the year
the year year year yoar
MNumbies MNumbes MNumbear MNumbsar MNusmibar Mumber
470,000 - - {(470,000) s =
845,000 = {95,000) - (375,000) 375,000
720,000 - (40,000) - - 680,000
- 780,000 5 - i * 780,000
2,035,000 780,000 {135,000)  {470,000) (375,000) 1,835,000
1,010,000 - {70,000 £ (470,000) 470,000
00,000 - {65,000) - - 845,000
- 745,000 (25,000) - = 720,000
1,910,000 745 000 {150,000) - (4 70,000) 2,035,000

Mo performance rights were vesled and exercisable al 30 June 2012.

Falr value

During the current financial year 780,000 performance rights were granted to employess (2011: 745,000) at a weighted
average fair value of 51 44 (2011: $2.68). The fair value of the performance rights subject to the EPS hurdle far vesting
{50%) was determined as $1.84 by using & Binomial option pricing model. The fair value of the performance rights
granted subject to the TSR hurdle for vesting (50%) was determined as $1.05 by using a Monte Carlo simulation. When
determining the fair values it was assumed the Company would have a dividend yield of 8.04%, the risk free rate was
3.63% and volatility ranged botween 35-45% for the Company and its comparator companies listed for the TSR hurdle.

The fair value of the performance rights granted will be allocated to each financial year evenly over the specified three
year service period, The amount recognised as personnel expenses in the current financial year was $321,000 (2011

£522 000). Refer to the Remuneration Report for further details.
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Provisions
Slte

It thousands of ALD Warrantles  Restructuring restorafion  Other Total
Balance at 1 July 2071 16,463 36 2,741 2817 22,057
Provisionz made during the year 5,124 10,740 2,840 6,584 25,288
Provisions used during the year {7.620) (B,293) (2,068) (6,827) (24,808)
Disposals (273) - - (81) (354)
Effect of movements in foreign
exchange 4 5 - - 4
Balance at 30 June 2012 13,698 2,483 3,513 2,493 22187
Current 7.242 2483 2123 2,008 13,857
Man-current 6,456 - 1,380 484 8,330

13,698 2483 3,513 2,493 22 187
Warranties

The total provision for warranties at balance date of 513,698,000 relates to fulure warranly expense on products
sold during the current and pravious financial years. The major warranty expense relates to water heating
products. The provision is bazsed on estimates made from historical warranty data associated with similar products
and services. The consolidated entity expects to expend $7,242,000 of the total provision in the financial year
ending 30 June 2013, and the majority of the balance of the liabilily over the following four years. The net present
value of the provision has been calculated using a discount rate of 3.00 per cent,

Restructuring

The restructuring provision relates to the estimated costs of redundancies and related costs with respect to the
closure of manufacturing operations and other business restructuring. During the financial year ended 30 June
2042, restructuring was underizken In our Bathrooms & Kitchens and Door & Access Systems operafing segments
with $10,740,000 being provided and $8,293,000 being utilised, At balance date the balance of the restruciuring
provision was $2 483,000 with the majority o be utilised in the next financial year.

Site restoration

The provision for site restoration at balance date of $3,513,000 relates to the removal of plant installed in leasad
premises where there is a lisbilily under the lease for the plant to be removed on expiry and the leased premises made
good, and for site remadiation required. As part of the restructuring in our Bathrooms & Kitchens and Door & Access
Systems operating segments, & further §2,840,000 was provided. Payments of $2,068,000 were made in the current
financial year. The majorily of the aclivity is expected fo be completed by June 2013, The remaining balance
classified as non-current will be utilised when loased siles are exited.

Capital and reserves
Share capital

Ordinary shares AUD
In thousands
2012 2011 2012 2011
On issue al 1 July —fully paid 301,625 301.103 387,644 396,539
|ssue of shares under the employee share plan 481 422 1,086 1,305
Onissue at 30 June — fully paid 302,006 301,525 398,930 397 844

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value in respect of ifs issued shares.

The holders of ordinary shares are enfitled to roceive dividends as declared from lime to time and are entitled o
ona vole per share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank egually with regard to the Company's residual
assots,
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24. Capital and reserves (continued)
Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differances arising from the retranslation of the financial
statements of foreign operations where their functional currency is different from the presentation currency of the
reporting entity, as well as from the refranslation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign
subsidiary.

Hedging reserve
The hedaging resorve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net changs in the fair value of cash flow
hedaing instruments related to hedoed transactions that have not yet ocourred.

Equity compensation reserve
The equily compensation reserve represents the fair value of the cumulalive net charges of the parformance
rights,

Dividends
Dividends recognised in the current yoar are:

Cents pershare  Total amount Frankead Data of
In thousands of AUD payment
2012
Interim 2012 ordinary 9.5 28,645 100% 4" April 2012
Final 2011 ordinary 85 25,630 100% 6™ Oct 2011
Total amount 18.0 54,275
2011
Interim 2011 ordinary g5 28,604 100% 5% April 2011
Final 2010 ordinary 8.5 25,594 100% 8" Oct 2010
Total amount 18.0 54,198

Franked dividends declared or paid during the year were franked at 1he tax rate of 30%.
After the balance shoot date the following dividends were approved by the directors. The dividends have not
been provided for. The declaration and subsaquent payment of dividends has no Income tax consequences.

Cents pershare  Total amount Franked Data of
In thousands of AUD payment
Final ordinary 8.5 25,870 100% 4" Oct 2012

The financia! effect of these dividends has not been brought fo account in the financial stalements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2012 and will be recognised in subsequent financial repoers.

Dividend franking account The Company

In thousands of ALD 2012 201
30 per cent franking credits avallable to shareholders of GWA Group Limited

for subsequent financial years 14722 27 513

Tho above avallable amounts are based on the balance of the dividend franking account at year-end adjusted for:
(s) franking credits/debits that will arise from the paymeni/setlament of the current tax liabilities/assets; and
(b) franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at year-end.

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare
dividends. The impact on the dividend franking account of dividends proposed after balance date, but not
recognised as a liability, is to reduce it by $11,001,000 (2011: $10,984,000). In accordance wilh the fax
consolidation legislation, the Company as the head enlily in the tax-consolidated group has also assumed the
bonefit of $14,722,000 (2011 $27,513,000) franking credits.
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Finaneial instruments and finaneial risk management

Exposure o credit, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of the consolidated entily's business.
Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchangs rates and interest
rates,

Risk management policy

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The
Board has established the Executive Risk Commiltee, which is responsibie for developing and monitoring risk
managemant policies. The Committes is required to report regularly to the Board on ils aclivities.

Risk managament policics are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the consalidated entily, lo sl
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policios and
systems are reviswed regularly to reflect changes in market condilions and the consolidated entity's activities.

The Board Audil Committce oversees how management monilors compliance with the risk management policies
and procedures and revlews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the
consolidated enfity. The Board Audit Commillee is assisted in its oversight rolo by the Internal Audit team. The
Internal Audit team conducts both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk managsmenl controls and procedures. The
results of the reviews are reported to the Board Audit Committes,

Capital management policy

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base and grow shareholder wealth. The Board monitors debl
lavels, cash flows and financial forecasts to establish appropriate levels of dividends and funds available fo reinvest
in the businesses or invest in growih opporiunities.

The Board focuses on growing shareholder wealth by monitering the performance of the censolidated entity by
reference to the return on funds employed. The Board defines retum on funds employed as trading earnings before
interest and tax divided by net assets after adding back net debt.

There were no changes to the Boards appraach to capital management during the year.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the consolidated entity if a customer or ather counterparty to a financial
instrument fails lo discharge their obligations.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure fo credit risk is monitored on an engoing basis. A risk
assessmant process is used for customers requiring credit and credit insurance is utilised for major concentrations
of trade debls. Goods are sold subject to retention of fitle clauses in most clrcumstances. The consolidated entity
does not require collateral in respect of financial assets.

The consolidated entity maintains an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of frade recoivables.

Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are with counterparties with sound credit ratings, Given their
high crodit ratings, management does not expect any counterparly to fail to meet its obligations.

The eonsolidated entity has three major customers which comprise 50% of the trade receivables carrying amount at
30 June 2012 (2041: 47%). At balance date there were no material uninsured concentrations of credit risk.
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25, Financial instruoments and financial visk management {continued)

Credit risk ([continued)

Tha carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure of the consolidated

enfity. The maximum exposure to credi risk at balance date was:

In thousands of ALUD 2012 2011
Cash and cash eguivalents 30,528 36,573
Trade receivablas 80,549 103,609
Employee share loans 5,407 5,295
Commodily contracts used for hedging - 788
Forward exchange contracts used for hadging 18,4856 19,585

134,878 165,851

The zgeing of trade receivables for the consolidated entity at balance date is as follows:

2012 2012 2011 2011

in thousands of AUD Receivable Impaiment Recelvable  Imipaimment
Mot yet due 65,154 (70} 87,130 (238)
Past due 0-30 days 26,528 (61} 32,575 {104)
Past due 31-60 days 1,255 (35) 2,770 (B4}
Past due 61-120 days 1.043 {312) 1,432 (2086)
Past due 120+ days 2.563 (1,188} 3,702 {1.588)
Less accrued rebates and credit claims (17,999) - (24,001} -

80,549 (1,666) 103,609 (2,200)

There were no trade receivables with re-negotiated terms.

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year for the

consolidated entity was as follows:

In thousands of AUD 202 2011

Balance at 1 July (2,200) (4,751)
Impairment loss {recognized)reversal (231) 177
Impairment losses applied 846 2,641
Acquired through business combinations - (277)
Disposals 122 -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {3) 10
Balance at 30 June {1,668) {2,200)

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the consolidated entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as

they fall dus. The consolidated entity prepares cash flow forecasts and maintains financing and

overdraft facilities with a number of instilutions to ensure sufficient funds will be available to mest
obligations withoutl incurring excessive costs. The cash flows of the consolidated entity are controlled by
management and reported monthly to the Board who is ultimately respensible for maintaining lguidiy.

g
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Financial instroments and financial risk management (continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

The contractual maturities of financial lizbilities and derivatives thal are cash flow hadges of the
consolidated entity, including estimated interesi payments are as follows:

Maturity analysls

In thousands of ALD

2012

Mon-darivativa financial liabilities
Unsecured cash advance
facilities

Trade and other payabies
Darivativo financial liahilities

Interest rate swaps

designated as hedges
Commodity contracts designated
as hedges — outflow

Commodily contracts designated
as hedges - inflow

Forward exchange contracis
designated as hedges — outflow
Forward exchange confracts
designated as hedges — inflow

Total at 30 June 2012

2011

Non-derivative financlal llabllities
Unsecured cash advanca
facilities

Trade and other payables
Derivative financial liabilitics
Intorest rate swaps

designated as hedges
Commodity contracts designated
as hedges —outflow

Commaodity contracts designated
as hedges — inflow

Farward exchange contracts
dosignated as hadges — oulflow
Fornward exchange contracis
designated as hedges — inflow

Total at 30 June 2011

The unsecured cash advance facilities are aplit belween three year and five year terms. The periods
in which the cash flows associated with derivatives arise match the periods of profit and loss impact.

34

Carrying  Confractual  LessthanG 6-12 1=2 35 5+
amount cash flows months months ycars years years
(205,000)  (279,454) {12,515) {12,515)  (25030) (224,304) {(5.000)
{45.068) (45,069) {45,021) (48) 5 = =
(3,096) (2,026) (B0OBG) {599) (559) (52} -
(18,610) (18.610) {18,610) - - = -
18,405 18,495 18,495 - = = ==
(263,280)  (326,664) (58,457) (13,162)  (25,589) (224.456) (5,000)
(234 G56)  (297,532) (8.307) (8,307) (168158) (220,647 {34,6535)
(80,111} (50,111) {48,771) (3113 (29} - -
{4501 (452) {122) {111} (177) (42) -
(B05) (G05) (B05) = - 5 -
786 788 788 - - - -
{20,241} (20,241) {20,241) - - - -
18,585 16,585 19,685 - - - -
(2856090  (348,568) (58,673) 8,729y  (16,821) (229,668 {34,656)
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. Financial instruments and financial risk management (continuwed)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in markel prices such as interest rates and foreign exchange rales
will affect the consolidated entily's income or value of holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
miarket risk managemeant is to manage and contral market risk exposures wilhin acceplable parameters.

The consalidated entity enters into derivatives in order to manage markel risks. All fransactions are
carried out within the guidelines set by the Executive Risk Committes,

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the consolidated entity's income. The
consolidated entity’s variable rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in cash flows due to
changes in interest rates.

The consolidaled entity adopts a policy of ensuring that its exposure to changes in interest rates on
borrowings is reduced. Interest rate swaps, denominated in Auslralian doliars, have been entered into to
achiove an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposure. The swaps mature over the nexl 3 years
and have fixed swap rates ranging from 3.86% to 5.42% (2011: 5.05% - 5.42%). At 30 June 2012, the
consolidated entity had interest rate swaps in eperation with a notional contract amount of $125,000,000
(2011: $125,000,000). An additional $25,000,000 swap will commence in the next financial year which
will replace an existing maturing swap.

The consolidatod entity classifies interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value.

The net fair value of swaps at 30 June 2012 was $3,086,000 recognised as a fair value derivative liability.
{2011 $450,000 falr value derivative liability).

{i) Profile
At balance date the consolidated entity's interest bearing financial instruments were:

2012 2012 2011 2011
Motional Carryling Motional Carrying
In thousands of AUD value amount valug amount
Varlable rate financial instruments
Unsccoured cash advance faciiities {205,000)  (205,000) (234 G56) {234,658)
Bank balances 12,598 12,883 14,2186 14,216
Call deposils 17.530 17,530 22,357 22 357

(174,472) (174472) (198,083)  (198,083)

Fizxed rate financial instruments
Interest rate swap derivatives 125,000 (3,098) 125,000 {450}
Total (49,472) (177.568) {73,083) {198,533
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. Financial instruments and financial risk management {continued)

Market risk (continued)

a) Interest rate risk (continued)

{ii) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The consalidated entily does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rates al the reporing date would not affect profit or loss.

A change of 100 basis points in interest rales at balance dafe would have affected the consolidated
anfity's equity and financial assets and liahilitios as follows:

In thousands of AUD 21z 2011
Increase of 100 basis points

Hedging reserve {increase)/decrease (2,622) (1,152)
Financial assets increasa/{decrease) - 702
Financial liabilities {incroase)/decrease 2,622 450

Decrease of 100 basls polnts

Hedging reserve {increase)/decreass 2,690 1,170
Financial assets increase/{decrease) = -
Financial liabilities (increase)/decrease (2,680) {1170

(i) Cash flow sensitlvity analysis for fixed and variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis poinis In interest rates during the period would have affecied the consolidated
antity's profit or lose as follows:

in thousands of AUD 2012 201
Increase of 100 basls points .

Unsecured cash advance facilities (AUD) (2.519)  (2.442)
Unsecured cash advance facilities (USD) (25) (57)
Bank balances 130 142
Interest rate swap derivatives 1,141 1,168
Call deposits variable rate 268 250
Call deposits fixed rate 8 46

(996) (553}

Decrease of 100 basis polnts

Unsecured cash advance facilities (AUD) 2,519 2,442
Unsecured cash advance facilities (USD) a 52
Bank balances {(130) (142%
Interast rate swap derivatives (1,141) (1,168)
Call deposiis variable rate {267) {280}
Call deposits fixed rate (8) {481

B2 348
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25, Financial instruments and finaneial risk management {continued)

Market risk (continued)
b) Foreign currency rlsk

The consolidated entity is exposed to foreign currency risk on salos, purchases and asset and liability holdings that are
denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of its subsidiaries and retranslatien of the
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries. The eurrencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and NZD.

The consolidated entity hedges its foreign currency exposure in respect of forecasted sales and purchases by entering
into forward exchange contracts. The forward exchange contracts have maturities of less than six months after the
balance date. The consolidated entity classifies its forward exchange contracts hedging forecasted transactions as
cash flow hedges and states them at fair value.

(i) Exposure to currency risk
In thowsands of AUD equivalent
Currency transaction risk

2012

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Cash

Met balance sheet exposure

Estimaled forecasi sales
Estimated forecast purchases

Met forecast transaction exposure

Forward exchange contracis
MNet exposure 30 June 2012
Foraign exchange rates at balance date

2011

Trade receivables

Trade payables

Cash

Met balance sheel exposure

Estimated forecast sales
Estimated forecast purchases
Met forecast lransaclion exposure

Forward oxchange contracls
MNet exposure 30 June 2011
Foreign exchange rates at balance date

Currency translation risk
202

Met assets

2011

Mot assels

usp MNZD EUR
285 - -
(1,120) (49) (839)
2030 1,660 553
1,195 1620 (286)
- 8983 -
(32,795) (4.422)  (5943)
(32,795) 4561  (5.943)
15,602  (1,762) 1,050
(150088) 4418  (5.179)
1.0181 12771 0.8092
485 . 101
(1,265) (3 (1,274)
458 323 517
{322) 320 (656)
4,829 9551 142
(30,288) (5480)  (8,139)
(34,459) 4,062  (7.997)
14946  (1312) 3241
(19,835) 3,070  (5412)
1.0739 12953  0.7405
- 1708 .
1,485 2623 .
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25, Financial instruments and financial visk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)
b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The impact of exchange rale movements on profit is subject to other variables including competiter exchange rate
positions and movement in market prices. The impact of exchange rate movements on equity is net material,

Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabililies, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position are as follows:

Camying Falr value Carmying Fair value
amount amodmt
In thousands of AUD 2042 2042 2011 2011
Cash and cash equivalents 30,528 30,528 36,573 36,573
Trade and other receivables 85,430 85,430 110,694 110,694
Interest rate swaps.
Liabilities {3,006) {3,0946) {450} (450}
Commodily contracts:
Aszets - - 788 788
Liabilities i J (605) (605)
Foneard exchange contracts:
Assets 18,495 18,495 19,585 19,685
Liabilities (18,610) {18.610) {20,241) (20.241)
Unsecured cash advance facilities (205,000) (205,000) (234 ,656) {234 656)
Trade payables and accrued expenses (48,393) {45,393) {55,126} (55,128)

{138,637) (138,637) (143,438) (143,438)

Estimation of falr values
The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimaiing the fair values of financial
instruments reflecied in the table.

(i) Derivatives

Forward exchange contracts are marked to market by discounting the contractual forward price and deducling the
current spot rate. Commaodity contracts are marked to markst by discounting the contractual forward price and
doducting the current commodity spot price. For interest rate swaps broker quotes are oblained. These quoles are
back tested using discounted cash flow techniques. Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future
cash flows are based on management's best estimates and the discount rate is & market related rate for a similar
instrumeant at the balance sheet date. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are hased on market related data at
the balance sheet date.

{ii) Loans and borrowings
The notional amount of the interest-bearing loans is deemead to reflect the fair value. The interest-bearing loans are
split between three year and five year terms.

{iii) Trade and other receivables [ payables
All receivables / payables are either repayable within lwelve months or repayable on demand. Accordingly, the notional
amount is deemead to reflect the fair value.

(iv) Employee share loans and other employee loans
Employee share loans and other employee loans are carried at fair value using discounted cash flow technigues.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Finaneial instruments and linancial visk management (continued)
Estimation of fair values (continued)

(v) Interest rates used for determining fair value
The consolidated entity uses the government yield curve as of 30 June 2012 plus an adequale constand credit spread
to discount financial instruments. The interest rales used are as follows:

2012 2011
Darivatives 3.14% - 3.58% 4.88% - 5.07%
Employes share loans and other loans 7.40% - 7.80% 6.65% - 7.80%
Loans and borrowings 5.36% - 5.66% 237% - 7.18%

{vi} Fair value hierarchy
The consolidated entity recognises the fair value of its financial instruments using the level 2 valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:
s Level 1: quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabililies
» Level 2- inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 thal are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices)
»  Level 3: inputs for the ssset or liability that are not based on abservable market data (unobservable inputs)

I thousands of AUD Loval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
30 June 2012

Commeodity confracts used for hedging . = . 3
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging - 18,495 - 18,495
Interest rate swaps used for hedging - = - =

= 18,495 - 18,495
Commaodity confracts used for hedging - - - -
Forward exchange coniracts used for hedging - (18,810) - (18810
Interest rate swaps used for hedging - {3,098) - (3,098)
- (21,706) - (21,708)

30 June 2011
Commodity contracts used for hadging 768 - - 788
Forward exchange contracis used for hedging - 19,585 - 18,685
Interest rate swaps used for hadging - - 7 -
788 19,585 - 20,373
Commodity contracts used for hedging {605) - . {G05)
Forward exchanges contraels used for hedging - (20,241) - (20,241)
Interest rate swaps used for hedging - {450) = (450)

(605) (20,691) - (21,298)
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20. Operating leases

7.

Leases as lessee
Mon-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

in thousands of AU 2012 201
Less than one year 12,401 12,872
Between one and five years 28411 20,013
More than five years 5,431 2878

46,243 35,763

The consolidated entity leases warehouse, factory and office facilities and motor vehicles under
oporating leases. The warshouse, factory and office facilily leases typically run for a pericd of 210 8
years, with an option to renew the lease after thal date. None of the leases include contingant rentals.

During the financial year ended 30 June 2012, $14,111,000 (2011: §13,308,000) was recognised as an
oxponse in profit or loss in respect of operafing leases.

Capital commitmenis

in thousands of AUD 2012 2011

Capital expenditure commitments

Plant and equipment
Contracied bul nol provided for and payable;

Within one year 4111 13.514

45



GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
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28. Coulingencics

Environmental remediation

In previous financial years, the consolidated entity investigated and reported two environmental
contamination issues at factory sites at Revesby NSW and Eagle Farm Queensiand. The Reveshy site
is leased and occupiad by Mollwraith-Davey Ply Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the ullimate parent,
GWA Group Limited. The Eagle Farm site was previously occupied by Corille Limited (formerly Rover
Mowers Limited) and was exited in a prior financial vear following the sale of the Rover Mowers
husiness.

The remediation activities at the [Revesby site were substantially completed during the 2012 financial
year and on-going monitoring will be required. The remediation activities at the Eagle Famm site were
completed during the 2012 financial year. The remediation provision at 30 June 2012 is $1,082,000
which the directors consider adequate.

Brivis evaporative cooler recall

Since the acquisition of Brivis in April 2010, the consolidated entity has confinued product recaliz
commenced by the former owner, Carrier, for Brivis evaporative coolers manufactured betweon August
2000 and Movermnber 2003 due to defective components. The total cost of the product recall cannot be
reliably eslimated at this stage. The Brivis purchase agreament provides that Carrier is responsible for
product liability and recall costs ahove a specified threshold with an overall cap on Carrier's liability.
The directors believe the provision at 30 June 2012 of $1,064,000 in respect of potential product
liability and product recall costs is adequate.

29, Deed of cross guarantee

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1398, the wholly-owned
subsidiaries as listed in Nole 30 are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for
preparation, audit and lodgement of financial reparts, and directors’ report.

It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of
Cross Guarantee. The effect of the Doed is that the Company guarantees to each credilor payment in
full of any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under cerlain provisions of the
Corporations Act 2001, 1f a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only
be liabla in the evenl that after six months any ereditor has not been paid in full. The subsidiaries have
also given similar guarantees in the event Lhat the Company is wound up.

& consolidated statoment of comprehensive income and consolidated statement of financial position,
comprising the Company and controlled entities which are a parly to the Deed, after eliminating all
transactions betwoen parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee, at 30 June 2012, is set oul below.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
29, Deed of cross guarantee (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income and retained

profits

In thousands of AUD 2012 2011
Profit before tax 48211 93,081
Income tax expenss (2.597) (27.435)
Profil after tax 38614 65548
Retained profils st beginning of year 42191 30,743
Dividends recognised during the year {54,276}  (54,198)
Share-based paymants, net of income tax (2G4) P
Retained profils at end of the year 268,266 42,191
Statement of financial position

in thousands of AUD 2012 2011
Assets

Cash and cash eguivalents 20,085 34,070
Trade and other receivables 98,936 121,359
[ventories £9,428 100,228
Income tax receivable 1.537 3
Other : 2496 2,574
Total current assets 219,482 258631
Recsivables 4 TAT 4,659
Intercompany receivables 35,213 31,430
Investments 11,435 11,048
Deferred tax assets 17,418 16,829
Froperly, plant and couipment 74,579 88,715
Intangible assets 379,543 384 280
Other 3,521 4,171
Total non-current assets 526456 552,142
Total assets 745,938  B10,773
Liahilities

Trade znd olher payables 67,486 75,079
lncome tax payable - 10,281
Employees henefits 13,433 15,615
Frovisions 13,B57 13,782
Total current liabilities 94,776 114,757
Loans and borrowings 205,000 234,656
Employee benefits 12,337 14,131
Provisions 8330 B.183
Total non-current labilities 225,667 255,980
Total liabllities 320,443 INI3T
Met assets 425495 439,038
Equity

fssued capital 398830  397.844
Reserves 299 (999)
Retained earnings 26,266 42 191
Total equity 425,495 439,036
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Consolidated entities

Parent entity
GWA Group Limited

Subsidiaries

Austral Lock Ply Lid

Brivis Climate Systems Ply Lid
Cansreb Ply Lid

Caroma Holdings Limited
Caroma Industriss Limited
Caroma Industries (NL) Limited
Caroma International Pty Lid
Caroma USA Inc

Corille Limited

Dorf Clark Industries Lid

Dorf Industrizs (NZ) Lid

Dux Manufacturing Limited

G Subs Pty Ltd

Gainsborough Hardware Industries Limited
Gliderol International Pty Limitad
GWA Finance Pty Limited

GWA Group Holdings Limited
GWAIL (NZ) Lid

GWA Taps Manufacturing Limited
GWA Trading (Shanghai) Go Lid
Industrial Mowers (Ausiralia) Limited
Mainrule Limited

Mellwraith Davey Pty Lid

Sebel| Furniture {(Hong Kong) Lid
Sebel Furniture Limited

Sebel Furniture Limited (N2)
Sebel Furniture Holdings Ply Lid
Starion Tapware Pty Ltd

Stylus Pty Ltd

Warapave Pty Ltd

Partios to
Cross
guarantes

-

ZALALAALZAZAZTLZAZALALLLLZLLZZALZ <

Country of

incorporation

Australiz

Auslralia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Mew Zealand
Australia
Usa
Australia
Australia
Mew Zealand
Australia
Ausiralia
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australiz
Mew Zealand
Astralia
China
Australia
Mew Zealand
Australia
Hong Kong
Australia
Mew Zealand
Australia
Ausiralia
Australia
Australiz
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Ownership interest

2012

100%
100%
100%:
100%
100%:
100%:
100%:
T00%:
100%
100%
100%:
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%

201

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%:
100%
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Parvent enlity disclosures
As at, and throughout, the financial year ended 20 June 2012 the parent company of the consolidated
anfity was GWA Group Limited.

Company
In thousands of AUD 0z 20
Results of the parent entity
Profit for the period 81,676 20,002
Other comprehensive income = -
Total comprehensive income for the period 81,674 25,002
Financial position of the parent entity
Current asseols 2775 1,138
Total assels 585,340 511,888
Current liabilitios - 2,970
Total liabilities 151.442 106,037
Shareholders equity of the parent entity
Share capital 398,230 397,844
Equily compensation resanva 2413 2,802
Retained eamings 32,650 5,205
Total shareholders equity 433,898 405,851

Parent entity contingencies

The directars are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of thase matters, as itis not
probable that a fulure sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of
reliable measurament.

Contingent liabifitios

The directors are not aware of any contingent liabililies of the parent entity as at reporting date (2011:
nil).

Capltal expenditure commitments

The parent entily has not entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant
or oguipment as at reporling date (20101: nil).

Farent entity guarantees In respect of dehis of jis subsidiaries

The parent eniity has entered into 2 Deed of Cross Guarantee with the effect that the parent entity has
guaranteed the repayment of all current and future creditors in the event any of the entities parly o the
Deed is wound up, Mo deficiency in net assets exists in these companios at reporting date (2011: nil}.
Furthar details of the Deed of Cross Guarantee and the subsidiaries subject to the Deed are disclosed
in Note 29.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Reconcilintion of ecash llows Ivom operating activities

In thousands of AUD 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities
Profil for the period 39655 63,358
Adjustments for,
Depreciation 12,851 12,838
Amoriisation 65,3659 5615
Share-based paymanis (771 §22
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses {1,298) 1,580
Met financing costs 14,247 15,175
Loss on disposal of discontinued operations, nel of income tax 4,319 422
{Gzin}floss on sale of proparty, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (9,632} 184
Income fax expense 11,256 28,622
Operating profit before changes in working capital
and provisions 768,996 128,717
Decreasze In trade and other receivables 21,941 13,764
Decrease in inventories 3,835 7.679
Docrease in trade and other payables (2,967) (22,310)
[Docrease in provisions and employes bencfils (820)  {1.771)
OB,BBS 126,079
Met interest paid (15,879) (16,551)
Income taxes paid (22,407) {20,970
MNet cash from operating activitics 60,499 88,558

Related partics

Key management personnel compensation
The key management personnel compensation included in 'personnel expenses’ (see note 7) are as follows:

In AUD 2012 2011
Short-term employee benefils 5,960,847 6,478,529
Post-employment benefits 463,622 480,658
Other long term bonefits 202,124 601,680
Termination benefits 50,000 -
Share-based payments 344,678 763,624

7041471 8,334,500

Individual directors and executives compensation disclosures
Information regarding individual direclors and executives compensation is provided in the Remuneration Reporl
scction of the director's report.

Apart from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the consolidated
enfity since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts involving direclors’
interests existing at yoar end.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Related partics (continued)

Loans to key management personnel and their related parties (consolidated)

Details regarding loans outstanding at the reporting date to key management personnel and their related
pariies, where the individual's aggregate loan balance exceeded $100,000 at any time in the reporting
period, are as follows:

Balance Balance Interest not charged in the Highest balance
fn AUD 1 July 2011 30 June 2012 raporting poriod in period
Diractors
F Crowlay 1,320,000 798,008 82,420 1,320,000
R Thomton 245 496 227 496 18,468 245,496
Execulives
L Pattersan 616,073 580,073 46,689 616,073
W Saxelby 725 600 671,600 54,549 725,600

Mo loans were made lo key management personnel or their related parlies during the year (2011 nil).

[Jotails regarding the aggregate of loans made, guaranteed or securad by any enlily in the
consalidated entity to key management personnel and their related parties, and the number of
individuals in each group, are as follows:

. Intarast not Mumber in
Opening Closing
charged in the group at 30
batance balance renoming perid fune
In AL porng pe
Total for key management personnel 2012 2907169 2277177 202,124 4
Total for key management personnel 2011 3,153,832 2907169 201,689 4

The Employee Share Plan loans are interest free and repayable over 15 years or earlier In certain
circumstances. Dividends paid on the shares acquired under the Plan are applied against the balance of
the loan outstanding.

Other key management personnel transactions with the Company or its controlled entities

The consolidated entity purchased components and tooling of 78,768 (2011: $122,118) from Great Weslem
Corporation Pty Lid, a company of which Mr R Thornton is a director, Amounts were billed based on normal markel
rales for such supplias and were due and payable under normal payment lerms. The consolidated entity incurred
legal fees of $296,413 (2011: $193,554) from Clayton Ulz Lawyers, a legal firm of which Mr D McDonough is an
equity pariner. Amounts were billed based on normal market rates for such supplies and were due and payable
under normal paymeant terms, Amounts receivable from and payable to key management personne| or to their
relaled parties at reporiing date arising from these transactions were as follows:

InAUD 2012 2011
Trade creditors 38,080 26,723

From fime to lime, key management personnel of the Company or its controlled enfities, or their related enlilies,
may purchase goods from the consolidated entity. These purchases are on the same terms and conditions as
those entered into by ofher consolidated entity employees or customers and are lrivial or domestic in nature.
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GWA Group Limited and its controlled entities
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Related parties (continned)

Movements in shares
The movement during the reporting period in the number of ordinary shares in GWA Group Limited held, directly,
indirectly or beneficially, by cach key management person, including their related parties, is as follows:

Held at Goranted as Held at

1.uly 2011 eanpensaling Purchases Sales 30 Junc 2012
Directors: non-executive
R Andarson 18,380,803 = 5,000 - 18,404 8073
G McGrath 150,000 2 - - 150,000
W Bartiett 30,914 = - - 30,914
[ MeDonough 100,485 = - - 100,495
P Birtles 15,000 = - - 15,000
J Mulcahy 25,000 £ 20,000 . 45,000
Executive directors
P Crowlay 750,000 177,500 - {(177,500) 7a0,000
R Thomton 116,313 17,500 Z {(5.119) 128,504
Executives
G Oliver 174,907 27,500 & - 202 407
W Saxelby 320,000 £0,000 - {20,000) 350,000
L Patterson 200,000 27,500 - = 227,500
P Crosslay = 15,000 3 - nfa
G Welszh £ 20,000 < - nia

The refevant interest of each direcior in the share capital of the Company as nolified by the directors’ to the
Australian Securities Exchangs in zccordance with Section 208G(1) of the Corporations Act 2001 as at 30 June
2012 is listed in the Directors’ Report.

TIeld at Granted as Held st

1 July 2010 compensation Purchases Hales 30 dune 2011
Dilractars: non-executhe
D Barry(Rafined 28 Cctober
201%) 12,877,399 - - - nia
L Andesson 18,399 803 e - - 18,399,803
G MaGirath 150,000 o - - 150,000
W Bartistt 15.914 - 15,000 - 30,914
D McDonough 60,495 - AD,000 - 100,495
* Birtles (Appointecd 24
Mowvambar 2070} nia - - - 15,000
J Mulcahy (Appointed 24
Novemiber 2070} nia - - - 25,000
Executive directors
P Crowlay FE0,000 * - - 750,000
R Thamton 112,313 - 4,000 - 116,313
Exgcutives
G Olivar 14,907 = - - 174,907
W Saxeliy 300,000 ¥ 20,000 - 320,000
L Paliarson 240,738 = - {40,739y 200,000
M Evans 14,338 = - {14,338} -

Mo shares were granied to key management personnel during the reporiing period as compensation. The aggregate
number of shares held by key management personnel or their related partios at 30 June 2012 was 20,404 813 (2001
20,282 432).
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Subsequent cvents

Omn 14 June 2012, the consolidated entity entered into a scheme implementation agreement (S14) to acquire all of
the shares of Q Technology Group Lid (QTG). Subsequent to 30 June 2012, the S1A was terminated by the
parties due to 2 condition precedent in the S1A becoming incapable of salisfaction. On 16 July 2012, the
consolidated endity signed an indicafive non-binding heads of agreement with QTG for the acquisition of AP
Services and Solutions Pty Lid (AP} for $14 millicn on 2 debt free basis. APl is a supplier of safes, locks, alarms
and locksmithing services to commercial premises. The consolidaled enfity is continuing its discussions with
QG on the acouisition of API.

Other than the maller noted above, to the Direclor's besl knowledge, there are no events that have arisen
subsequent to 30 June 2012 that will, or may, significantly affect the operation or results of the consalidated
antity.



Directors' declaration
1 In the opinion of the directors of GWA Group Limited (‘the Company'):

(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes, and the
Remuneration Report in the Directors’ Report, are in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a frue and fair view of the group's financial position as at
30 June 2012 and of its performance for the financial year
ended on that date: and

(i) complying with Australion Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Regulations 2001,

(b) there are reascnable Sr‘aunds to believe that the Company will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

2  There are reasonable grounds fo believe that the Company and the group
entities identified in Note 29 will be able to meet any obligations or
liabilities to which they are or may become subject to by virtue of the Deed
of Cross Guarantee between the Company and those group entities pursuant
to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.

3  The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 290A
of the Corporations Act 200! from the Managing Director and Chief
Financial Officer for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

4 The directors draw attention to Note 1(a) to the consolidated financial

statements, which includes a statement of compliance with International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Dated at Brisbane on 14 August 2012.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

“Geoff McGrath
Director

Peter Crowley
Director
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Independent anditor’s report to the members of GWA Group Limited

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanying fnancial report of GWA Group Limiled (the Company),
which comprises the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2012, and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date, noles 1 to 34
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanalory information and
the dircelors® declaration of the Group comprising the Company and the cntitics it controlled at
the year’s end or [rom time to time during the Gnancial year.

Dircctors’ responsibility for the financial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and [air view in accordance with Auslralian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Aet 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is [ree [rom material misstatement whether due
to fraud or error. In Noic 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 101 Presentaiion of Financial Statements, that the financial statements of the
Group comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on vur audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant cthical requirements relating to audit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
report is free from malerial misstatement.

An aundit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial reporl. The procedures selected depend on the anditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the rigks of material misstatement of the [inancial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In muking thosc risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
rclevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a lrue and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, bul not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effcctivencss of the entity’s internal conlrol. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablencss of accounting
estimates made by the divectors, as well as cvalualing the overall presentation of the financial
report.

We performed the procedures 1o assess whether in all malcerial respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair vicw which is consistent with our understanding of the Group’s
financial position and of'its performance.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

KPMG, 2n Austratian partnership and a member

firm of the KPMG notwork of independent mgmbar

firms affiliated with KPMG Intornational Cooperative: [ labilily limited by a schema spprovad under
("KPMG Intemational’). 3 Svoss enlily, Professional Standards Lagislation,
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of GWA Group Limited (continued)

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complicd with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Aet 2001,

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of the Group is in accordance with the Corporations Aet 2001,
including:

(i)  giving a lrue and fair view of the Group’s financial position as
at 30 Junc 2012 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations
2001, '

()  the financial reporl also complics with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in Note 1.
Report on the remuncration report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included on pages 6 to 22 of the dircetors’ report for
the year ended 30 June 2012. The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the remuneration reporl in accordance with Section 300A of the
Corporations Aet 2001. Our responsibility is lo capress an opinion on the remuncration report,
bascd on our audit conducted in accordance with audiling standards.

Auditor's opinion

I our opinion, the remuneration report of GWA Group Limiled for the year ended 30 June
2012, complics with Section 300A of the Corporationy Adct 2001,

4G

KPMG

1S v

Gireg Doydell
Partner

Sydney
14 August 2012
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Lead Aunditor’s Independence Declaration under Scction 307C of the Corporations Act
2nm

To: the directors of GWA Group Limited
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and helief, in relation to the audit for the financial

year ¢nded 30 June 2012 there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations
Al 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduel in relation Lo the audit.

e

KPMG

\___?,ma_

Greg Boydell
Partner

14 August 2012

KPMG, an Australinn parinasship and a mambar

fivrn of the KPMG network of independant mamber

firrns affiliatod with KIPMG International Cooparative  Liability limited by a scheme approved undsr
{"KPMG Intamaiional’), o Swiss anlily. Professional Slandanis Lagisiation.



